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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

To the Supervisory Board and Shareholders
of Netia S.A.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated telaheet of Netia S.A. (the “Company”) and its &liases (together, the

"Netia Group*) as at December 31, 2004 and theeélaonsolidated statements of income, changédsirlsolders’ equity and cash
flows for the year then ended, all of them expréssePolish Zioty (“PLN”"). These consolidated firal statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Ospaesibility is to express an opinion on these cliufested financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Inteomafi Standards on Auditing. Those standards reqat we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abouhertitie financial statements are free of materiastatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingatheunts and disclosures in the financial statesnedtn audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and isgmifestimates made by management, as well asatve the overall financial

statement presentation. We believe that our guoltides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated fanstatements present fairly, in all materiapeegs, the financial position of
the Netia Group as at December 31, 2004 and tidises its operations and cash flows for the ythan ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

The convenience translations are disclosed aoptre consolidated financial statements. The coievee translation for the year
ended December 31, 2004 has been presented in ld3&das a matter of arithmetic computation ugimg official rate of the
National Bank of Poland at December 31, 2004 of PL8B04 to US dollar 1.00. We have not auditedethesnslations and
accordingly we do not express an opinion theredre US dollar amounts presented in these consdlidatencial statements
should not be construed as a representation th&lthl amounts have been or could have been coduwertdS dollars at this rate
or at any other rate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Sp. z 0.0.

Warsaw, Poland
March 1, 2005



NETIA S.A.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(All amounts in thousands)

Convenience
Translation

__$(Note3)
December 31, December 31, December 31,
Note 2003 2004 2004
(PLN) (PLN) (Unaudited)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 228,001 301,863 100,944
Accounts receivable...............cccc e,
Trade, net of provision for impairment of PLN 55138
and PLN 65,852 (USD 22,021)......ccccccccuvvummmmmmeeennnes 95,023 116,732 39,036
TaxreceivablesS.........cccceeeeeeei i 3,271 3,009 1,006
OthBI i 2,249 3,022 1,011
INVENIONIES ... 737 2,488 832
Prepaid expenses 10,042 10,432 3,488
Total CUITENT ASSELS......cuueiieeiiiiiiiiieee e 339,323 437,546 146,317
Available for sale financial assets.........cccceeeveeeeeerievinnnnnn.. 9 51 17
Fixed assets, net.........ccceeeeeeeeeeinnnnn 1,583,277 1,817,156 607,663
Intangible assets...........cccvveeeennn.
Licenses, Net........ccceevvveeeeeenenns 252,732 222,783 74,499
Computer software, net 91,429 84,690 28,321
Negative goodwill............oooiiiiiiiii e (28,799) (77,657) (25,969)
Deferred inCOmMe tax aSSEtLS ........ovvivvniiicmmmmmmee e e eeias 16 - 46,843 15,664
Other 1oNg term asSetsS.......cccoviiiiiiiieieiee e 1,606 1,149 384
Total NON-CUIreNt @SSEtS........ccvvvvvvvvvieeiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeens 1,900,254 2,095,015 700,579
Total ASSELS.....cvvviiieeeiiiiiie e 2,239,577 2,632,561 846,896

Wojciech Madalski
President of the Company

Kent Holding
Chief Financial Officer

Warsaw, Poland
March 1, 2005

The accompanying notes are an integral part oethessolidated financial statements.
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NETIA S.A.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(All amounts in thousands)

Convenience

Translation
$ (Note 3)
December 31, December 31, December 31,
Note 2003 2004 2004
(PLN) (PLN) (Unaudited)

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Short term liabilities for licenses ........cocceeeevvveeeivnnnnnnn 7 4,759 4,049 1,354
Short term installment obligations............ccceeeiiiineee 15 - 11,872 3,970
Accounts payable and accruals...............commeeeeen..

TrAAC...eii e e 64,751 90,269 30,185

TaX PaAYaADIES .....cceveieiiiiiiiie e eeeee e 4,325 10,955 3,663

Accruals and Other.........ccccceevveiiiiieee e 12 62,701 49,010 16,389
Deferred iINCOME ......ovviiiiiiiiiiei e 9,751 10,589 3,541
Total current llabilities ...........cccooeeeeiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeieeeee 146,287 176,744 59,102
Provisions for liabilities and charges..............cccuvveee... 11 7,030 9,895 3,309
Long term liabilities for licenses............cocceveeriieecnns 7 4,361 54,088 18,087
Long term installment obligations 15 5,707 - -
Other long term liabilities............. 508 1,216 407
Total non-current liabilities 10,576 55,304 18,494
Total liabilities and provisions...........cccccoecvvvveeeeeeiiinns 163,893 241,943 80,905
MINOrity INTEreSt .....ccovciiieieie e 18 4,328 5,186 1,734
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital (nominal par value of PLN 1 perahar 344,487 366,956 122,711
Share premium 1,572,903 1,605,357 536,837
Treasury shares (2,812) (2,812) (940)
Other FESEIVES ...eeviieeiiciiieeeee e s e e enraaeeeeas 3,816,325 - -
Other supplementary capital .................commmneeeeeivenes - 203,565 68,073
Retained earnings / (Accumulated deficit)... (3,659,547) 112,366 37,576
Total shareholders' equity..........ceeeveeeeiiiiiiiiiieeeene 17 2,071,356 2,285,432 764,257
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity.................... 2,239,577 2,532,561 846,896

The accompanying notes are an integral part oethessolidated financial statements.
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NETIA S.A.
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
(All amounts in thousands)

Convenience

Translation
Year ended $ (Note 3)
December 31, December 31, December 31,
Note 2003 2004 2004
(PLN) (PLN) (Unaudited)
Revenue
Telecommunication services revenue
Direct VOICE SEIVICES........ccovuiiiiiiiiiiemeee e 489,453 546,989 182,916
Installation fees 847 640 214
MONthIY fEES....ciiiiiiiiiiie et e 124,835 144,248 48,237
Calling Charges.........ccuveviiiuiieers e e e 360,199 398,152 133,144
[0 To= o | £ S 123,933 134,842 45,092
Domestic long distance calls.......... 73,947 82,223 27,496
International long distance calls.... 30,384 35,685 11,933
Fixed-to-mobile 114,950 121,506 40,632
OFNEY <o 16,985 23,896 7,991
Payphones ........ooouiiiiiiiiiiieee e e 3,572 3,949 1,321
INAIrECt VOICE ...t 66,728 103,445 34,592
D17 USSP 61,495 90,288 30,193
INterconNNEection reVENUE .............ceeeeevimmmeeeevvnnnnnn. 5,108 67,256 22,491
Wholesale SEIVICES ........coccuvieiiuieeeemm e 41,409 41,921 14,019
Intelligent NEtWOrk SEerviCes............couv e eeereneeen 15,891 28,869 9,654
Other telecommunication revenue.............ccceeuve... 9,444 7,826 2,616
Radio communication services revenue................... 11,587 10,568 3,534
Total FEVENUE.......ceeiiii e 701,115 897,162 300,015
Other operating iNCOME.........cceeeiiiiiiieieee e 8,394 4,634 1,550
Costs
Interconnection Charges ..........ccuveveeiiccmeeee e, (122,045) (158,733) (53,081)
Salaries and benefits 20 (114,943) (113,952) (38,106)
Social security COStS..........cceeeernnnee 20 (18,097) (20,261) (6,775)
Professional services (32,158) (13,840) (4,628)
Insurance............ccvveeee.. (5,897) (6,505) (2,175)
Taxes and fEES .......uuviiiiiiiiii e (37,422) (44,239) (14,794)
Advertising and promotion expenses (28,281) (24,523) (8,201)
Cost of rented lines and network maintenance............ (55,694) (73,618) (24,618)
Depreciation of fixed asSets........cccvveviimeeemmeevrereeennnnns (190,340) (188,891) (63,166)
Amortization of negative goodwill 25,828 21,420 7,163
Amortization of other intangible assets..............ccc....... (78,108) (49,938) (16,699)
Impairment and write-off charges for non-currergeds. .. 6,9 (799,695) (21,705) (7,258)
Other operating EXPENSES........ccoieeeiiuimmeeeeeeeaeineneens 21 (92,755) (121,217) (40,535)
Profit / (Loss) from operations........... (840,098) 85,794 28,692
Financial income / (expense), net 22 (65,621) 27,874 9,321
Net effect of cancellation of license fee obligata......... 7 176,940 - -
Profit / (Loss) before income taX..........ccccovcvvveeviiviieneen. (728,779) 113,668 38,013
Income tax benefit ......oooviiiiiiiii e 16 254 46,343 15,497
Profit / (Loss) before minority interest...............ccuueeee. (728,525) 160,011 53,510
Minority share in losses / (profits) of subsidiatie.......... (554) (858) (287)
Net Profit / (I0SS)......eeeieeiiiiiiiiee e (729,079) 159,153 53,223
Basic earnings per shargnot in thousands)*................ 23 (2.12) 0.44 0.15
Diluted earnings per share(not in thousands)*............. 23 (2.12) 0.42 0.14

* The calculation was based on the following wegghaverage numbers of share: 343,849,029 and 3Z88Pfor 2003 and 2004,
respectively. The diluted weighted average numbshares for 2004 was 381,476,802.

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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NETIA S.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(All amounts in thousands)
Retained
Other earnings / Total
Share Share supplementary  Treasury Other (Accumulated  Shareholders'
capital premium capital shares reserves deficit) equity
(PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN)
Balance as at January 1, 2003............... 203,285 1,713,865 - (2,812) 3,819,712 (2,931,759) 2,802,291
Registration of series H shares.............. 312,626 25,831 - - (338,457) - -
Transfer of shares issuance costs
up to the amount of share premium..... - (25,831) - - 25,831 - -
Decrease of nominal value of shares..... (171,866) 171,866 - - - - -
Issuance of series J shares, net of related
COSES it et 442 - - - - - 442
Effect of full consolidation of certain
subsidiaries. .........ccoceveeernee o - - - - - (2,297) (2,297)
Coverage of losses from previous years
in individual entities............cccccovvevvvcmne - (312,828) - - 309,239 3,589 -
NELIOSS ...vvvevieeie e eemmm e - - - - - (729,079) (729,079)
Balance as at December 31, 2003......... 344,487 1,572,903 - (2,812) 3,816,325 (3,659,547) 2,071,356
Issuance of series J shares, net of related
COSES™ . iieitii e ctee et steeee et 21,698 32,454 - - - - 54,152
Issuance of series K shares, net of related
(010 ) TS 771 - - - - - 771
Transfers (see Note 17) .....ccoeveeiiveriineeen. - - - - (3,816,325) 3,816,325 -
Transfer pursuant to resolution of
shareholders’ meeting of Netia S.A.
(s€e NOtE 17) evvvvieeieevie e - - 203,565 - - (203,565) -
NEet Profit.....ccceecceeiiecee e - - - - - 159,153 159,153
Balance as at December 31, 2004......... 366,956 1,605,357 203,565 (2,812) - 112,366 2,285,432

* Transaction costs deducted from share premiumuaiteal to total PLN 1,324 for series J shares andssK shares.

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.

4



NETIA S.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(All amounts in thousands)

Convenience

Translation
Year ended $ (Note 3)
December 31, December 31, December 31,
Note 2003 2004 2004
(PLN) (PLN) (Unaudited)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net profit / (loss) (729,079) 159,153 53,223
Adjustments to reconcile net profit / (loss) to oash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation of fixed assets and amortizationa#nises
and other intangible asSets .........coovivieeeeeeme e 268,448 238,829 79,865
Reversal of amortization and financial expensexted|to
cancellation of license fee obligations......cccceecveeeiviiiieeneeenn. 7 (176,940) - -
Amortization of negative goodwill.............coeeerereeieeniniiinennn. (25,828) (21,420) (7,163)
Amortization of discount on notes and installmelligations ..... 566 6,165 2,062
Impairment and write-off charges for non-currergds............... 6,9 799,695 21,705 7,258
Deferred income tax benefit ..........cccovviveiii 16 - (46,843) (15,664)
Deferral of license fee obligations ..........cceeeeeieiiiiiiiiiei s - (13,363) (4,469)
Interest expense accrued on license liabilities vo....cvvveevenee. 8,985 4,056 1,356
Minority share in profits / (losses) of subsidiarie. 554 858 287
Other ProViSioNS ..........coiiiiiiiiieee st e (715) (149) (50)
Increase in long term assets .. (1,606) 457 153
Foreign exchange losses on translatlon of Iong dﬂfbl
and restricted INVESIMENLES ........ocuuviiiiieiieee e 18,638 (6,118) (2,046)
Loss on sale of subsidiaries .................. - (426) (142)
Write-off of notes issuance costs........... 40,211 - -
Amortization of notes issuance costs 1,265 - -
Interest expense accrued on long term debt andctestcash..... 3,030 - -
Changes in working capital.............ccccvveereeeeiiiiciiieieee e, (4,766) (27,213) (9,099)
Net cash provided by operating activities..............cccccevevvreiinneen. 202,458 315,691 105,571
Cash flows used in investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets and computer software.................... (147,699) (191,397) (64,005)
Net cash received/ (paid) on acquisition of sulasidi......... w13 16,640 (95,608) (31,972)
Sale of SUDSIAIANES ......ccocvviiiiiiie e - (504) (169)
Payments for [ICENSES ........ceeeiiiiiiiicecre e (9,160) (4,790) (1,602)
Decrease / (increase) of restricted cash and ecpshadents........ 259,514 - -
Purchase of minority shareholdings in subsidiary................... (577) - -
Increase Of INVESIMENLS.......cocoiiiiiiiiecmr e (291) - -
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activigis.................... 118,427 (292,299) (97,748)
Net cash used in financing activities:
Proceeds from share iSSUANCE ..............eccceeeniiiiieeiiie e 1,118 55,667 18,615
CoOst Of ShAre ISSUANCE.......ccoiiiiiiieit et (676) (744) (249)
Issuance / (redemption) of notes for warrants... 508 (8) )
Redemption of notes (excluding interest paid orenwllon) ...... (198,988) - -
Payment of interest on long term debt.........cccccvvievieeiiiinnnnn. (5,205) - -
Payments related to financial restructuring....eeee..ccoovvvveeneeennn. (24,634) - -
Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activiéis.................... (227,877) 54,915 18,363
Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash aqlents..... 2,528 (4,445) (1,486)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents..............ccccccceeviiinneeen. 95,536 73,862 24,700
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year...................... 132,465 228,001 76,244
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year..........cccccceevvvvvvveeeennn. 228,001 301,863 100,944

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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NETIA S.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Changes in working capital components:

Trade receivables
Tax receivables.........ccccvvvvvvvvnnnns
Other receivables

INVENTOMIES ..eveieeiiei e
Prepaid eXpenses.........cccvvveveeeiiivvemmmmm s
Trade creditorS.........cccvvvveveeeiiiiivieereeeeeeeeenn
Provisions, accruals and other payables......
Deferred iNCOME ........cvvveeiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeees

Supplemental disclosures:

Interest paid ........c.eeeeveeiiiiiiiiiee e
Income taxes paid ..........ccceeeeriiiiiiiieccmes

Non-cash investing and financing activities:

The Netia Group incurred the following liabilities the end of each year that were related to fagsts or construction in

progress additions:

(All amounts in thousands)

Convenience

Translation
Year ended $ (Note 3)
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2003 2004 2004
(PLN) (PLN) (Unaudited)
(4,286) (10,867) (3,634)
3,217 1,220 408
6,838 (63) (21)
..................... 370 (360) (120)
.................... 329 217 73
..................... (27,391) 25,256 8,446
................... 13,362 (42,349) (14,161)
.................... 2,795 (267) (89)
(4,766) (27,213) (9,098)
Convenience
Translation
Year ended $ (Note 3)
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2003 2004 2003
(PLN) (PLN) (Unaudited)
..................... 5,205 - -
.................... 723 529 177

Convenience

Translation
Year ended $ (Note 3)
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2003 2004 2004
(PLN) (PLN) (Unaudited)
35,917 70,975 23,734

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.

6



NETIA S.A.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in thousands)

Index to the notes to the consolidated financial atements

The Company and the NEtiA GrOUP .........cccocummiirrie ettt ree e s e e e s e e s st e e e s sae e e s nereeensneeeeneees 8

Financial restructuring
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Significant subsidiaries 0f the COMPANY . e et evvtiiiiiie e e e s e e e e s asb e e e e e e s ssaraaeeeeeeannnes 31
Salaries and DENETILS..........o i et e e e e s e e 31
Other OPETALING EXPEINSES ........eeieiesmmeeeseeeee et ettt et e eaaaaaabereeeeeaaaabeeeeeeeaaassbeeeeeeeasaanssbeeeeeesaaasnbsseeaeeansnbseeeaeeaaanes 32
Financial INCOME / (EXPENSE), NMEL......cuuiiieieeeiiiitiiitt et sttt e e e e s et e e e s st bb e e eaeeassastbbeeeeeeesasstbeeeeesnaasseeeaeeeaasnes 32
o Tl o 3y oL g 1T U= PP RTR PRI 32
Related Party trANSACTIONS ..........ueiieiiieiiiiiii ettt et e e e et et e e e e s s bee e e e e e e s hhbee e e e ee e e s e sbbeeeeaesaaasnbsbeeaeeansnbsreeaeeasanes 33
CommMItMENtS ANA CONTINGENCIES ... i imceeeeeeeee ettt et e e e s e sttt e e e e e s e teeeeee s s s as s bee e et e e e e s aassbeeeeeeeeaanbbbeeeeesasnbrneeaeeans 35
YU o ESY =T [ =T 0L AoV o TSSO EUPT SRR 36



NETIA S.A.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in thousands)

The Company and the Netia Group

Netia S.A. (the “Company” or “Netia”) was formed 1990 as a limited liability company under the lasf$oland and
was transformed into a joint stock company in 1982003 a general meeting of shareholders adaptedolution changing
the Company’s name from Netia Holdings S.A. to Al8iA. The Company is incorporated in Poland wihprincipal
executive office located at ul. Poleczki 13, 02-8®arsaw, Poland. The Company and its subsididoelectively, the
“Netia Group”) is the largest independent fixedelirelecommunication operator in Poland. The Netiau@ is also engaged
in the installation and supply of specialized mehi&dio services (public trunking) in Poland throlts 58.2% owned
subsidiary, UNI-Net Sp. z 0.0. (“UNI-Net").

The average number of persons employed by the Qompas 1,279 and 1,254 during the years ended Dese8i,
2003 and 2004, respectively.

The consolidated financial statements of Netia $oAthe year ended December 31, 2004 compris€timepany and its
subsidiaries. A list of the Company’s undertakingsat December 31, 2004 is set out in Note 19.

These consolidated financial statements were apgréor issuance by the Company’s Supervisory Boardlarch 1,
2005.

The Netia Group’s backbone network, which conngles largest Polish cities as well as its local asceetworks
currently allows for the provision of various voitelephone and data transmission services. Theséces include
switched, fixed-line voice telephone service (imihg domestic long distance, international longtatise and fixed-to-
mobile services), Integrated Services Digital NetwBISDN"), voice mail, dial-up and fixed-accesstérnet, leased lines,
Voice over Internet Protocol (“VolIP”) and co-loaati services. The Netia Group launched wholesalgécesy;, including the
wholesale termination of in-bound traffic, in ea2901. In September 2001, the Netia Group begaerioff frame relay
services. Since February 2002, the Netia Groupbkas offering Free Phone (“0800") and Split Chat'@801"), services
based upon an Intelligent Network. The Netia Grofiprs data transmission services utilizing itsnak. In the second half
of 2002, the Netia Group started offering ductkd@ver and capacity leasing and co-location sewidn accordance with
provisions of the Telecommunication Act introduded2001 (2001 Act”) liberalizing the market forternational long-
distance calls, as of January 1, 2003 the Netiai@Grtarted to offer international long distanceviees in selected zones,
based on standard lines, in addition to alternageeices based on VolP technology, which werereffegreviously. The
Netia Group commenced offering “0-708” premium ragevices in April 2003. In April 2004 the Netiadbip introduced a
new service - “Net24” - a broadband Internet acéesADSL technology, addressed to Netia's subscsihesing either
analogue or ISDN lines.

The Company’s ordinary shares have been listecherMarsaw Stock Exchange since July 2000 and ateop#he
WIG-20 index. Between August 1999 and October 2@02,Company’s American Depositary Shares (*“ADSgéfe also
listed for trading on the NASDAQ stock market.

Until April 7, 2004 the Company was subject to theriodic reporting requirements in the United S$tateder the
American Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “AcOn April 7, 2004, the Company filed a Form 15hwvthe U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission to deregiste€timpany from the Act. Upon filing of the Form fié&riodic reporting
obligations under the Act were immediately suspdnd®registration from the Act became effectiveJoty 6, 2004. The
Company continues to be subject to periodic repgrtequirements under the Polish regulations oorteg requirements
for companies listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange.

In April 2003 the Netia Group acquiréWiat Internet S.A. ($wiat Internet”), formerly TDC Internet Polska S./,
Polish Internet service provider.

In January 2004 the Netia Group acquired RegionaBieci Telekomunikacyjne EI-Net S.A., a fixed-line
telecommunication operator (See also Note 13).

In September 2004 the Company’s subsidiary, Netibid Sp. z 0.0., with its seat in Warsaw (“Neti@ldle”), was
registered by the relevant Polish court. The shamedletia Mobile were taken up solely by Netia's ollp owned
subsidiaries.



NETIA S.A.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in thousands)

Financial restructuring

Background of the restructuring

In 2002, the Netia Group went through a financestructuring process. The restructuring processrapassed legal
proceedings in three jurisdictions consisting oftdbu moratorium proceedings, Polish arrangement gaoings and
proceedings in the United States of America undmtiSn 304 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. Creditdrthe Netia Group
had an opportunity to subscribe with their reduckadms in the form of installment obligations fares H shares issued by
the Company. On December 23, 2002, the Netia Gsarpditors subscribed for 312,626,040 (not inugends) series H
shares offered by the Company in exchange for gwthliment obligations. The par value of the Compa ordinary shares
was reduced on January 30, 2003 from PLN 6.00i(ntitousands) to PLN 1.00 (not in thousands).

On May 16, 2003, the Company issued 64,848,442irtbiousands) warrants pursuant to the prospedaisd April 17,
2002, as subsequently amended, prepared undeth Ralis and made available in Poland on December0B2.2The
Company issued the warrants to holders of recorth@fCompany’s shares as of December 22, 2002eatttke price of
PLN 2.53 (not in thousands). The warrant strikeeiis the issue price for series J ordinary sharbhe. warrants began
trading on the Warsaw Stock Exchange on May 27320he Company also plans to issue up to 18,373(7856 in
thousands) ordinary series K shares under a keyogegstock option plan.

As at December 31, 2004, 22,140,102 (not in thadsjawarrants have been exercised and the Compahgie capital
was accordingly increased by 22,140,102 (not irushads) series J shares. Furthermore, as at Dec&hp@004 the
Company issued 771,011 (not in thousands) ordisarigs K shares with a nominal value of PLN 1 eddle,to the exercise
by certain persons authorized thereto of theirtsighrising from the performance stock option plalopged by Netia’s
Supervisory Board in 2002 (the “Plan”) .

Current financial condition

The restructuring allowed the Netia Group to regalvency. The restructuring did not lead to theiglation of all of
the Netia Group’s outstanding debt. The outstanifietallment obligations at the nominal amount bNPL1,872 represents
indebtedness that was not exchanged for the osdisares H shares offered by the Netia Group inebdaer 2002.
Payments of this debt were originally scheduleatoeting to court decisions, between 2007 and 2012004 Netia
announced that it intended to repay all the outbteninstallment obligations at the nominal amoofhPLN 11,872 by the
end of the second quarter of 2005. The restrugucieditors were offered to exchange their restmimg claim for new
Company ordinary series | shares at the price &f PI0826241 per share which shall be settled byrtbans of set-off with
the installment obligations or settled in cash. H™seie price of the series | shares is equal tasthee price of the series H
shares which have been issued in relation to thepaay’s financial restructuring in 2002. The sulgion for series |
shares was closed on February 16, 2005 and 5,8¥q/&it in thousands) shares were subscribed foe Vdlue of
installment obligations to be settled through exgsawith subscribed shares is equal to PLN 6,3@mdning creditors
willing to receive cash for their installment ofaligpn claims may submit their claims to the Compantgil April 29, 2005.

In 2003 the Company performed an impairment testtlie@ telecommunications segment. The test resuitedn
impairment charge of PLN 799,695, which was recogmiin the consolidated income statement for thar ynded
December 31, 2003. For further details regardiegripairment test see Note 9.

As at December 31, 2004, the shareholders’ equityuated to PLN 2,285,432 and the Netia Group haidkivwg capital
of PLN 260,802, including short-term license fedigdtions. In 2003 the financial restructuring ahd cancellation of local
license fee obligations of Netia were completednidtgement of the Company believes that the outstgridcal license fee
obligations of EI-Net, measured at fair value aaajuisition date and subsequently at amortizetd afd8LN 54,088 (PLN
463,628 in nominal terms, including prolongatioede will also be cancelled in accordance with thpliaable law. For
further details on the current situation and thenfany’s plans in this respect, see Note 7. In 20082004 the Netia Group
generated positive cash flows from operating &aiivzi Based on this position, the Management doebelieve that events
or conditions exist which may cast significant dooab the Company'’s ability to continue as a goiogaern.
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NETIA S.A.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in thousands)

Basis of presentation and summary of significaraccounting policies

The Netia Group maintains its accounting record$ @repares statutory financial statements in aecare with Polish
accounting and tax regulations. These consolidfiechcial statements have been prepared based thpoNetia Group’s
accounting records in order to present the coratadalifinancial position, results of operations aash flows in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standard$FRS”), including International Accounting Standsr@lAS”) and
Interpretations issued by the International AccmgnStandards Board (“IASB”).

New accounting pronouncements

In 2004 the IASB has published four standards aneetamendments. In addition there have been deesisions to
the existing standards. The Netia Group will adalptrelevant new standards and amendments fromadpriy 2005. The
nature of the future changes in the accountingcigsliand the estimate of potential impact of thenge in relevant standards
on the profit and loss and on the financial positdd the Netia Group are presented below.

In February 2004, the IASB issued IFRS 2 “Shareetia@Bayments”. The new standard should be appliedrfoual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2005, wéthospective effect regarding instruments graotedr after November
7, 2002 and not vested as at January 1, 2005.e5ept, the Company does not recognize the empkigek options issued
under the Plan until the date of exercise, whemtreinal value of shares increased by the costse@ftise is charged to the
income statement (see Note 17). Under the new atdriie Company will have to recognize the costhafre-based awards
to employees (including stock options) over théqeefrom the grant date to the vesting date. Thet assessed on a fair
value basis with measurement at the grant date.Cldrepany has performed the provisional valuatiorthef options in
accordance with the requirements of IFRS 2 andtdked cost of options to be recognized as at Jgnar005 as an
adjustment to retained earnings amounted to PLBI61,df which PLN 662 relates to the year ended Dz 31, 2004.

In March 2004, the IASB issued IFRS 3 “Business BGimations”. The new standard should be appliedbfgsiness
combinations for which the agreement date is oaftar 31 March 2004. For previously recognized guticbr negative
goodwill, it should be applied prospectively, frahe beginning of the first annual period beginnargor after 31 March
2004. Pursuant to the application of IFRS 3 asaaudry 1, 2005 PLN 77,657 representing the unareattpart of the
negative goodwill as of that date will be transéerto retained earnings.

In March 2004, the IASB issued IFRS 5 “Non-curréssets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operatioiisie new
standard should be applied for annual periods léggnon or after January 1, 2005. The Company eséisthat application
of IFRS 5 will not have any significant impact up@tained earnings upon its introduction.

The Company estimates that adoption of the stasdestéd below will not have any material effecttbe Netia Group’s
retained earnings:

IAS 1 (revised 2003) Presentation of Financiate3tents

IAS 2 (revised 2003) Inventories

IAS 8 (revised 2003) Accounting Policies, ChanigeAccounting Estimates and Errors
IAS 10 (revised 2003) Events after the BalancesSbate

IAS 16 (revised 2003) Property, Plant and Equipmen

IAS 17 (revised 2003) Leases

IAS 21 (revised 2003) The Effects of Changes drelgn Exchange RateslAS 24 (revised 2003) ReRget) Disclosures
IAS 27 (revised 2003) Consolidated and Separaterieial Statements

IAS 32 (revised 2003) Financial Instruments: Discire and Presentation

IAS 33 (revised 2003) Earnings per Share

IAS 39 (revised 2003) Financial Instruments: Rexdtign and Measurement

IAS 36 (revised 2004) Impairment of Assets

IAS 38 (revised 2004) Intangible Assets.

Measurement basis

The consolidated financial statements are prepareBolish Ztoty (“PLN"), using the historic cost meention as
modified by certain revaluations. However, untild@mber 31, 1996, Poland was considered to be arihftpgonary
economy. The consolidated financial statementsttferperiods through that date were prepared urdehistorical cost
convention as adjusted for the effects of inflationaccordance with IAS 29, "Financial ReportingHyperinflationary
Economies". The inflated values in PLN at Decengier1996 for balance sheet items became the neawarib@ basis for
subsequent periods. The historical cost conventias also modified by the revaluation of availaldegale investments at
fair value through the income statements as wefhiavalue measurement of assets and liabilibssat the acquisition date,
acquired in business combinations.
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NETIA S.A.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in thousands)

US Dollar convenience translation (Unauditéd

These consolidated financial statements are pregentPolish Zloty, which is the measurement ammbiréng currency
of the Netia Group as it reflects the economic twrxe of the underlying events and circumstancéiseo€ompany. The US
Dollar amounts shown in the accompanying consaiifinancial statements have been translated arbeer 31, 2003 and
for the year ended December 31, 2004 from PoligityZbnly as a matter of arithmetic computation e Polish Zloty
exchange rate of PLN 2.9904 = USD 1.00, the ratdighed by the National Bank of Poland and effextimn December 31,
2004. These amounts are unaudited and are inclisdétle convenience of the reader only as supplénginformation.
Such translation should not be construed as aseptation that the Polish Zloty amounts have beeroold be converted
into US Dollars at this or any other rate.

Group accounting

Subsidiaries, which are those entities in which@oepany has an interest of more than one hali@f/bting rights or
otherwise has power to govern the financial andatpe policies, are consolidated. The existenag effect of potential
voting rights that are presently exercisable ois@ndly convertible are considered when assessirgfheh the Company
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are constdiiérom the date on which control is transferiethe Company and are no
longer consolidated from the date that control eea§he purchase method of accounting is used ¢ouat for the
acquisition of subsidiaries. The cost of an actjoisiis measured as the fair value of the asse®ngip, shares issued or
liabilities undertaken at the date of acquisitidaspcosts directly attributable to the acquisitidine excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the net asséth® subsidiary acquired is recorded as goodiMie excess of the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired dwercost of acquisition is recorded as negative gidbdee note below for
the accounting policy on negative goodwill. Interggany transactions, balances and unrealized gaingramsactions
between group companies are eliminated; unrealigsses are also eliminated unless cost cannot dmveeed. Where
necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries haes changed to ensure consistency with the psladopted by the Netia
Group. Separate disclosure is made of minorityré@ste Negative minority interest resulting from atge net assets of
subsidiaries is not recognized unless there imgr@actual commitment by the minority shareholdersdver the losses.

When an acquisition involves more than one traimmacéach significant transaction is treated sepbrdor the purpose
of determining the fair values of the identifiatdesets and liabilities acquired and for determirtinig amount of any
goodwill or negative goodwill on that transactioihis results in a step-by-step comparison of th&t of the individual
investments with the Company’s percentage inténetste fair values of the identifiable assets aalilities acquired at each
significant step.

Accounting for merger with subsidiaries

The merger of the parent and its subsidiaries semting a business combination under common coistesicounted for
in a manner similar to a pooling of interests -ttlgathe assets and liabilities transferred arendsd in the financial
statements of the transferee at their carrying amsoof the transferor prior to the transaction. Atifference between the
total carrying value of net assets transferredtheccarrying value of shares in the transfereetskbas accounted for as an
adjustment to the shareholders equity of the teansf

The consolidated financial statements of the Nétiaup include the results of operations for thequem which the
merger occurs as though the transfer of net aksetoccurred at the beginning of the period. Thecef of intercompany
transactions on current assets, current liabilitiegenue, and cost of sales for all periods pteseand on retained earnings
at the beginning of the periods presented are ditad to the extent possible.

In the case when a significant independent mindritgrest participates in the transaction, or exjast prior to the
transaction, and their percentage interests chaasgyasresult of the transaction, the transactigreaed as an acquisition of
shares from the minority interest. As a result,ahange in percentage shareholding is accounteskfan acquisition.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements necessegduires Management to make estimates and assnsgtiat affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities disdosures of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenuesxgetises during the reported period. Althoughetlestimates are based
on the Management'’s best knowledge of current eyémé actual results could differ from these estés.
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NETIA S.A.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in thousands)

Reclassifications

Certain prior periods’ amounts have been recl&sbifo conform to the presentation for the year énbDecember
31, 2004. The major reclassifications relate to phesentation of data transmission, wholesale sesvand intelligent
network services revenue due to changes of pradifatitions used for the Company’s management adooy as well as
insurance costs and taxes and fees.

Segment reporting

Through December 31, 2003 the radiocommunicatidivites of the Netia Group were designated as passe
segment. In the current year the Management dec¢aldiscontinue this division mostly due to thetfdmat those activities
are not significant to the Netia Group’s operatiansl they are not considered different in natureth@r operations of the
Netia Group. In consequence, the Netia Group hdyl @me business segment — telecommunications + Be@mber 31,
2004. The Group operates in one geographical at@ah is the territory of Poland.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is carried in the balance sheet at nominalevaAvailable-for-sale financial assets and finaheissets held for
trading classified as cash equivalents are meastréair value. The fair value is based on dealestes obtained at each
balance sheet date. Gains or losses are recogniiegl income statement.

Investments

The Netia Group classifies its investments in tilWwing categories: financial assets held for iingdand available-for-
sale financial assets.

Investments that are acquired principally for thepese of generating a profit from short-term fuattons in price are
classified as financial assets held for trading imetlded in current assets. During the years efdszember 31, 2004 and
December 31, 2003 the Netia Group did not holdiamgstments in this category.

Investments intended to be held for an indefingequ of time, which may be sold in response tadseder liquidity or
changes in interest rates, are classified as &laifar sale; these are included in non-curren¢tassnless management has
the express intention of holding the investmentidss than 12 months from the balance sheet dateless they will need to
be sold to raise operating capital, in which chsg are included in current assets.

Management determines the appropriate classifitatidits investments at initial recognition andenaluates this
designation at every reporting date.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognizechde-date — the date on which the Netia Groupneits to
purchase or sell the asset. The cost of purchatedies all transaction costs. Financial assets foelttading and available-
for-sale financial assets are subsequently caatddir value. Realized and unrealized gains aedds arising from changes
in the fair value these investments are includetiénincome statement in the period in which thésea

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at f@ilue and subsequently measured at amortized sogj the effective
interest method, less provision for impairmentt I§ probable that the Netia Group will not beealy collect amounts due,
according to the original terms of receivables,ravizion for impairment is recognized as other afiag expense. The
amount of the provision is measured as the diffedmetween the carrying amount of receivables hadtesent value of
expected future cash flows, discounted at the ietpiniterest rate of interest for similar borroweksy amounts reversed
during the period are presented net with the inmpaiit provisions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost andrealizable value, generally determined on a firsfirst-out (FIFO)
basis. Net realizable value is the estimated gglftirice in the ordinary course of business lesdicglpe variable selling
expenses. Where necessary, provision is made émletle, slow moving or defective inventory
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NETIA S.A.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in thousands)

Impairment and write-offs of non-current assets

Tangible fixed assets and intangible assets, imojugoodwill, are reviewed for impairment lossesewéver events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the cargmgunt may not be recoverable. An impairment i®secognized for the
amount by which the carrying amount of the asseteds its recoverable amount, which is the higlieanoasset’s net
selling price and value in use. For the purposeassessing impairment, assets are grouped atwestdevel for which
there is separately identifiable cash flows.

Individual items of tangible fixed assets and igliale assets are also periodically reviewed foirthether use to the
business. If they are no longer to be used duedonblogical, market or similar changes or decsimade by Management
to discontinue investments in specific locatiohgjit carrying value is decreased to reflect thdsmges.

Fixed assets and network under construction

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulgpeecition, plus related inflation through Decem®g&r 1996. Network
under construction represents the accumulatiorosifscassociated with the construction of the tetenanications and data
transmission networks and other tangible fixed tasSehe Netia Group includes in the constructiost @d its networks all
eligible borrowing costs (including interest cosifs,applicable) and administration and other ovarhecosts directly
attributable to the acquisition or constructionaskets before operations commence. Costs relatitiget network under
construction are transferred to the related fixeskaaccount and depreciation begins when opesatmmmence.

The costs of repairs and maintenance are chargiz timcome statement during the financial perioavhich they are
incurred. The costs of renovations are includethécarrying amount of the asset when it is prabafht future economic
benefits in excess of the originally assessed atandf performance of the existing asset will fltmthe Netia Group. The
renovations are depreciated over the remainingiubfef of the related asset.

Depreciation expense is recorded utilizing theigiitaline method over the estimated useful lifétaf assets. These lives
are summarized as follows:

Term
Buildings 10 to 40 years
Base stations (UNI-Net) 7 to 13 years
Transmission network 15 to 22 years
Switching system 10 to 15 years
Machinery and equipment 510 12 years
Office machinery and equipment 31to 10 years
Vehicles 5to 8 years

Land and land leasehold payments are not deprdciate

Leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks amdards of ownership are retained by the lesserctassified as
operating leases. Payments made under operatisgsléaet of any incentives received from the |@ss@ charged to the
income statements on a straight-line basis ovepé¢hied of the lease.

Licenses and license fee liabilities

Licenses are stated at cost less accumulated aatati. If payment for the license is deferred beymormal credit
terms, its cost is the net present value of thégatibn. The present value of the obligation iscokdted using the Netia
Group’s effective borrowing rates at the time tloerise was granted. Any differences between theinamrice of the
license and its net present value are treatedt@®st costs. Interest costs are capitalized upthettime when the network
in that license territory becomes operational aredthen recognized as interest expense over thedpef the obligation.
Amortization of the license also commences oncer¢lated network is operational and is recordec @traight-line basis
until the end of the grant period. The amortizapeniod is 12 to 15 years.
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NETIA S.A.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in thousands)

Computer software costs

Costs that are directly associated with identiadohd unique software products controlled by theaNeroup and which
have probable economic benefits, exceeding the bestond one year, are recognized as intangibletasBirect costs
include staff costs of the software developmenntaad an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Expenditure, which enhances or extends the perfocemeof computer software programs beyond theirimaig
specifications, is recognized as a capital imprameimrand added to the original cost of the softw@emputer software
development costs recognized as assets are andousaeg the straight-line method over their uséfids, not exceeding a
period of 5 years.

Negative goodwiill

Negative goodwill is recognized as any excesst #seadate of the exchange transaction, of theaN®etbup’s interest in
the fair values of the identifiable assets andiliitds acquired over the cost of the acquisitidio. the extent that negative
goodwill does not relate to identifiable expectetlife losses and expenses that can be measurablyedt the date of
acquisition, negative goodwill is recognized a®me in the income statement as follows:

(a) the amount of negative goodwill not exceedihg fair values of acquired identifiable non-mongtassets is
recognized as income on a systematic basis overetimaining weighted average useful life of the tdible
acquired depreciable/amortizable assets; and

(b) the amount of negative goodwill in excess of flair values of acquired identifiable non-monetassets is
recognized as income immediately.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when Netia Group hagsept legal or constructive obligation as a resiuffast events, it is
more likely than not that an outflow of resourcefl e required to settle the obligation, and tmeoant can be reliably
estimated. Netia Group has recognized provisiomshiadcount restructuring and termination benefdss on rental
contracts (onerous contracts) and legal claimstsO@dated to the ongoing activities of Netia Grarg not provided in
advance. Provisions are not recognized for futperating losses.

Headcount restructuring and termination benefitevisions comprise employee termination payments ang
recognized in the period in which Netia Group beesitegally or constructively committed to payment.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognizechwihe expected benefits to be derived from a cohtne less than the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations utitkeicontract.

Provisions for legal claims are recognized whesgbeon all available evidence, it is more likelgrimot that a present
obligation exists at the balance sheet date, th#oauof benefits relating to the claim is probalded it is possible to
estimate this reliably.

Provisions for restructuring and legal claims ageorded at estimated value of costs to be incufPedvisions for
onerous contracts are calculated based on the véalugure net cash outflows by the terminatioraafontract. If a contract
is concluded for a period exceeding the 12 montiogdrom the balance sheet date, the provisioeésrded based on the
discounted value of net cash outflows.

Retirement benefits

The Netia Group makes contributions to the Goventimeetirement benefit scheme at the applicable darring the
period based on gross salary payments (the “State)P

The State Plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go biasighe Netia Group is only obliged to pay thetdbations as they
fall due and if the Netia Group ceases to employnb®rs of the State Plan, it will have no obligatiorpay any additional e
benefits other than those benefits already earedsbown employees in previous years. The Statn B a defined
contribution plan. The expense for the contribwgias charged to the income statement in the samedpas the related
salary expense.

The Netia Group has no other employee retirememtspl
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NETIA S.A.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in thousands)

Equity compensation benefits

Share options are granted to employees and boambers of the managing bodies of the Company. Upencéese of
the options, the Company will issue to each exiegiparticipant the number of shares representirety participant’s gain
resulting from the exercise of the options. The @any provides the exercise price required to be pgithe participants in
the form of cash bonuses granted to the exercigmticipants. The vesting period for the optionsges up to three years
from the date of grant or upon achieving certaiecefied conditions. The Company does not recogttizeoptions until the
date of exercise. Upon the exercise of option tleen@any charges the nominal value of shares issngtiet income
statement.

Share capital

All shares outstanding issued by the Company assifled as equity. External costs directly attidlle to the issue of
new shares are shown in equity as a deductiorgfriak, from the proceeds.

Treasury shares are shares issued by the Compatiyefpurpose of the previous stock option plare €bnsideration
paid for those shares is deducted from the equitly they are cancelled, reissued or disposed.

Revenue
Revenue is stated net of discounts and value adsted

Telecommunications revenue includes mainly direiter products, such as installation fees, monthirges and calling
charges. The Netia Group records revenue fromliasten fees, which are not in excess of instadlatcosts, when the
customer is connected to the network. Calling cesrigclude the following traffic fractions: locahlts, domestic long-
distance (DLD) calls, international long distantdel) calls, fixed-to-mobile calls and other sensc@ncl. Internet dial-in,
emergency calls and intelligent network servicBg€venue from calling charges is recognized in ticerne statement at the
time a call is made over the Netia Group’s netwdecommunications revenue includes also sendgttesr than traditional
direct voice, such as indirect voice, data transioigs interconnection, wholesale, intelligent netweervices and other
telecommunication services. Other telecommunicatwmenue comprises the provision of Internet diadérvices for Netia's
indirect customers, Internet callback servicesywa#i as other non-core revenues. Other telecommatioit revenues are
recognized in the income statement in the perioghich the services relate.

Interconnection revenues are derived from calls @her traffic that originate in other domesticforeign operators’
networks but use the Netia Group’s network. TheidN&roup receives interconnection fees based oeeaggnts entered
into with other telecommunication operators. Thesgnues are recognized in the income statemeheiperiod to which
the services relate.

Radio communications revenue includes revenue fpetialized mobile radio service (public trunkint);ough the
Company’s subsidiary UNI-Net. Service revenuesramrded when the service is provided. Revenue fitee sale of
equipment is recorded when the customer takesetgliv

Interconnection charges

Interconnection with other telecommunication opanstis required to complete calls that originatebint terminate
outside of the Netia Group’s network or originatgside the network and terminate within it, or andy transferred through
the Netia Group's network. The Netia Group paysratnnection charges based on agreements entacedvith other
telecommunication operators.
Foreign exchange gains and losses

Foreign currency transactions are accounted fireagéxchange rates prevailing at the date of testrctions. Gains and

losses resulting from the settlement of such tretimas and from the translations of monetary asseis liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognizetiérincome statement.
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NETIA S.A.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in thousands)

Deferred income taxes

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liapilitethod, for all temporary differences arisingaestn the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying values fibancial reporting purposes. Currently enacted tates are used to
determine deferred income tax. The principal terapodifferences arise from different valuationsdepreciable assets and
accruals for tax and accounting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extahittis probable that future taxable profit wi# hvailable against which
temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred dagets are also recognized for unused tax lossegc forward and
unused tax credits to the extent that it is probabht future taxable profit will be available agsiwhich the unused tax
losses and unused tax credits can be utilized.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and ddfeaxdiabilities if, and only if, it has a legalgnforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabglitand the deferred tax assets and the defexxddhbilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority orstmae taxable base.

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Netia Group’s activities expose it to a varietyinancial risks. The Netia Group’s overall rislanagement program
focuses on minimizing potential adverse effectsthaise risks on the financial performance of theidN&roup. The
Management Board provides written principles foema risk management, as well as written poliaesering specific
areas, such as credit risk and price risk.
Pricerisk
- Currency risk:

The Netia Group’s revenues and costs are predoatyndénominated in Polish Zloty, other than somgnpents made
under the construction contracts, which are linteethe U.S. Dollar and Euro. To mitigate the cooerisk Netia Group

holds deposits in Euro and U.S. Dollars for sengcdf those payments. The Netia Group’s outstandioigestic long
distance license liabilities are also denominateBiro.

- Interest rate risk:
The Netia Group’s income and operating cash flongssabstantially independent of changes in marietést rates.
- Market risk:
The Netia Group does not participate in the matrieeling of securities.
Credit risk
The Netia Group has no significant concentratiohsredit risk. Cash transactions are limited tohhiredit quality

financial institutions. The Netia Group has a langenber of customers, nationally dispersed, ancethee policies in place
to ensure that sales of services to significantornsrs are preceded by appropriate verificatiotheir credit history.

Liquidity risk

The Netia Group policy assumes maintaining sufficieash and marketable securities to service themupayments .
Surpluses are invested in either bank depositeastry

Fair value estimation

The face values less any estimated credit adjustnfenfinancial assets and liabilities with a méuof less than one
year are assumed to approximate their fair values.

The fair value of financial assets available fdess based on dealer quotes obtained at eachdeatdreet date. Gains or
losses are recognized in the income statements.
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5.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand
Short term deposits

NETIA S.A.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in thousands)

December 31,

December 31,

2002 200

(PLN) (PLN)
158,060 203,938
69,941 97,925
228,001 301,863

The short term deposits consist primarily of fudéposited in treasury bills as well as money mairkegstment funds
and asset management institutions, which are iegéstvarious short term, low risk debt instruments

As at December 31, 2004 PLN 1,297 were restricteithey were put as collateral securing paymenégmalors.

Fixed assets and network under construction

Assets at adjusted cost

Switching system

Base stations

Machinery and equipment.
Office furniture

and equipment...............
Vehicles.....................

Network under constructian

Accumulated depreciation

Buildings ........cccuvveeeen.
Transmission network
Switching system

Base stations

Machinery and equipment

Office furniture and equipment.....

Vehicles......................

Disposals
December 31, Purchase of  Transfers and and other December 31,
2003 Additions subsidiary  reclassifications movements 2004
(PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN)
62,056 - 3,442 8,895 277) 74,116
17,303 - 2 117 - 17,422
1,615,844 - 160,255 49,981 (130) 1,825,950
1,198,522 - 108,874 87,253 4,099 1,398,748
8,252 - - - - 8,252
63,003 - 3,181 3,683 (757) 69,110
107,469 - 6,768 22,664 (7,715) 129,186
14,120 - 1,036 110 (3,085) 12,181
3,086,569 - 283,558 172,703 (7,865) 3,534,965
111,184 160,007 2,980 (172,672) (15,277) 86,222
3,197,753 160,007 286,538 31 (23,142) 3,621,187
Disposals
December 31, Depreciation Transfers and and other December 31,
2003 Expense reclassifications movements 2004
(PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN)
.................. 11,811 3,062 413 (280) 15,006
.................. 362,282 73,453 681 1,295 437,711
296,611 85,230 (9,721) 6,225 378,345
.................. 8,252 - - - 8,252
............ 29,688 5,993 33 (468) 35,246
76,633 19,372 8,594 (7,198) 97,401
.................. 10,520 1,781 - (3,467) 8,834
795,797 188,891 - (3,893) 980,795
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Accumulated impairment
and write-off provisions

Switching system
Machinery and equipment
Office furniture and equipment
Vehicles........ccccoiviiinis

Network under constructian.........

NETIA S.A.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in thousands)

Disposals
December 31, Write-off Transfers and and other December 31,
2003 charge reclassifications movements 2004
(PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN)
13,875 - 675 83 14,633
4,814 - 7 - 4,821
485,409 28 4,824 (41) 490,220
266,689 15,178 1,883 (70) 283,680
9,081 - 488 (124) 9,445
9,358 - 2,515 (252) 11,621
1,302 - - (207) 1,095
790,528 15,206 10,392 (611) 815,515
28,151 6,390 (11,543) (15,277) 7,721
818,679 21,596 (1,151) (15,888) 823,236

The write-off charge recorded in 2004 includes F8,B90 of provision created for discontinued prageotbe written off
and PLN 15,206 for obsolete telecommunication egeipt, which will not be used due to upgrade ofdhitching system
and transmission network. For further details rdggy the impairment charge see Note 9 “Impairmenhan-current

assets”.

The transfers recorded in the year ended Decenhe2®4 mainly relate to transfers from network @mdonstruction
to fixed assets due to the completion of constomctiAdditionally during the year ended December 3004 transfers
between switching system and transmission netwatk affice equipment were made due to reclassiboatiof selected

computer based equipment.

The transfer of PLN 1,151 from the accumulated immpent of network under construction to the acclated
impairment of software relates to the capital exliteines on software, which the Company startedstoduring 2004.

Net book value

Switching system
Machinery and equipment
Office furniture and equipment

Network under construction

December 31,

December 31,

VBNICIES ...ttt et e ettt e e e e e e et e e e e e r e eaaeees

2003 2004

(PLN) (PLN)
36,370 44,477
12,489 12,601
768,153 898,019
635,222 736,723
24,234 24,419
21,478 20,164
2,298 2,252
1,500,244 1,738,655
83,033 78,501
1,583,277 1,817,156

Overhead costs directly attributable to the actjaisior construction of assets amounting to PLNt19,and PLN 8,069
were capitalized to network under construction miyithe years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004&ctesdy. Financial
costs of PLN 4,244 were capitalized to network urodmstruction during the year ended December G232

In connection with the purchase of El-Net the alifixed assets were valued as of January 31, BQGAdependent
valuers. Valuations were made on the basis of cept@nt cost (see also Note 13).

The Netia Group has also concluded a general agmrten@garding lease of cars pursuant to which &Bg are subject to
specific lease agreements. The Netia Group issalbject to a contract for the operating lease fié®@Epace in Warsaw.
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(All amounts in thousands)
Licenses

License assets

December 31, Fair value December 31,
Gross book value 2003 adjustment 2004
(PLN) (PLN) (PLN)
Local telecommunication licenses/permits....ccoecc.vvveeeeeeenes 432,823 - 432,823
Datacom and internet licenses/permits...... 7,417 - 7,417
Domestic long distance licenses/permits ......cccceeeevcvveeennnen, 114,854 (7,500) 107,354
555,094 (7,500) 547,594

December 31,

Amortization

December 31,

Accumulated amortization 2003 expense 2004
(PLN) (PLN) (PLN)
Local telecommunication licenses/permits....ccoecc.vvveeeeeeenes 111,725 17,512 129,237
Datacom and internet licenses/permits...... .« oovveeacnenne 1,539 - 1,539
Domestic long distance licenses/permits .....cccceeeceeeeeeiennee, 25,576 4,937 30,513
138,840 22,449 161,289

December 31,

December 31,

Accumulated impairment 2003 2004
(PLN) (PLN)
Local telecommunication licenses/permits....ccoccu.vvvveeeeeenns 137,127 137,127
Datacom and internet licenses/permits...... . .o oveeeamnenns 5,878 5,878
Domestic long distance licenses/permits .....cccceeeeveeeeeinnneee, 20,517 20,517
163,522 163,522
December 31, December 31,
Net book value 2003 2004
(PLN) (PLN)
Local telecommunication licenses/permits ... ccocce...eeeeeeennee 183,971 166,459
Domestic long distance licenses/permits .....cccceeeevveeeeeeenneee, 68,761 56,324
252,732 222,783

License fee liabilities

Prior to the completion of the merger of the Comypavith its operating subsidiaries on December 3002 its
subsidiaries held fixed term permits for the opgeraif local telecommunication networks on a noshesive basis in
specified areas throughout Poland. Those permite witained through their conversion from telecomication licenses
issued under the regulations of the previous Tefegonication Act. The conversion took place by \értf the 2001 Act on
January 1, 2001. Licenses for telecommunicationgces in Poland were issued for 15-year periodd, al business plans
of the Netia Group, were made on the assumptionfthasuch 15-year period the operators would He &hoperate in an
environment that was limited to two operators. Mieistry of Infrastructure established license fegsl the Netia Group
accepted them under the same assumption. Becaas€dmpany’'s subsidiaries obtained the licenses rutiue old
regulatory regime, the Netia Group incurred licefeseobligations of EUR 215,756 (in nominal value)December 2002, a
new law entered into force in Poland, which allovileel cancellation of outstanding local licensedbkgations in exchange
for telecommunication infrastructure capital exgaumes or conversion of license fee obligationgxthange for shares or
debt of companies that had outstanding licenseifeesnnection with licenses for providing locahdees. Based on this
law on December 23, 2003, the Ministry of Infrastuue issued decisions to the respective subsidiar the Company. In
those decisions the Ministry cancelled all outstagdicense fee obligations at nominal value ammgnto EUR 91,385
(PLN 424,785 at the exchange rate prevailing atebdxer 23, 2003) and the outstanding prolongaties && PLN 15,799
(translated in the decision into EUR 3,601 usirg ¢élxchange rate prevailing at July 31, 2003), basedpplicable capital
expenditure in telecommunication infrastructureuimed in 2001 and 2002 in the operating subsidiarie
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As a result of those decisions the Netia Groupt &eaember 23, 2003 reduced the total local licéesdiability to zero.
At the same time a reduction of the gross bookevaluthe license asset was recorded as PLN 2348ing the historical
cost of the obligations forgiven, and the accunadaamortization was decreased by PLN 63,412. Theeffiect of the
cancellation of the local license fee liabilities BLN 176,940, being the difference between theyoag value of the
cancelled liability of EUR 74,973 (PLN 348,498 k¢ texchange rate prevailing on December 23, 2008)tee decrease in
net book value of license assets of PLN 171,558 neesrded as a gain in the consolidated incomersgtt for the year
ended December 31, 2003.

On November 26, 2003 the President of the OfficeRfegulations of Telecommunications and Post gcatddNetia S.A.
a telecommunication permit. Based on that permitfa3ecember 31, 2003 the Company performs theitet conducted
previously by its operating subsidiaries. The perisiivalid for 25 years with the possibility to erd this period before
expiry date.

On September 3, 2004 the new Telecommunication(thet“2004 Act”) came into force. Under the 2004t ficovision
of telecommunication activity is allowed after r&tgation by the President of the Office for Regolas of
Telecommunications and Post. All entities previgumlithorized to render telecommunication servineBoland retained
their existing rights and have been automaticalijered to the telecom entrepreneurs register. TorerédNetia and its
subsidiaries continue to be entitled to provideedemmunication services and use fixed public tedlaghand data
transmission networks in Poland. In 2004 Netia NoBip. z 0.0., a wholly owned subsidiary of NetiA.Swas registered in
the telecom entrepreneurs register as a providewdbile public telephony services.

El-Net license fee liabilities

El-Net, the subsidiary acquired in 2004, obtairieerses from the Ministry of Communications for ghevision of local
telephone services in areas including Warsaw, Byzgoand smaller cities in the northern part oaRal As of January 1,
2001, pursuant to the 2001 Act, all telephone Besnwere converted by virtue of law into telecomization permits. On
December 31, 2004 the total nominal value of ontitey license fee obligations of EI-Net was EUR ,662 (PLN 463,628
at the exchange rate prevailing on December 314)200

On December 30, 2002, EI-Net submitted applicatfongancellation of certain outstanding local lise fee obligations
in accordance with the applicable law enacted i0220Following its purchase by the Netia Group, EENiled an
amendment to the previous application asking foceHation of license fee obligations of EUR 75,§20QN 308,740 at the
exchange rate prevailing on December 31, 2004)relladed prolongation fees of PLN 37,733, basedapital expenditure
incurred between 2001 and 2003 as well as futuwestments to be incurred within the Netia Groupns&guently, on
October 29, 2004, EI-Net has also filed an appbeator cancellation of remaining license fee itigtants payable in 2010
and 2011 amounting to nominal value of EUR 28,934N 118,022 at the exchange rate prevailing on Bées 31, 2004).
On August 16, 2004 EI-Net received a decisiorhef Minister of Infrastructure dated July 12, 2004rging the promise to
cancel the outstanding license fees obligationguenting to EUR 75,690 and the prolongation feesuartiog to EUR 9,039
(equivalent of PLN 37,733 translated using the arge rate prevailing on November 29, 2002 and @ct2B, 2003). The
above cancellation shall occur upon the verifigatid capital expenditure incurred in accordancehwlite applicable law.
The Minister of Infrastructure also decided thatNelt's capital expenditure can be incurred fromudam 1, 2001 until
December 30, 2006, upon the assumption that capifsnditure already incurred by EI-Net in 2001-2@énounted to PLN
85,459. Pursuant to this decision all license fagngents and prolongation fees subject to the detisave been deferred
until December 30, 2006.

The total outstanding license fee obligations ofNEt have been subject to review as regards tlgirvlue upon
purchase of EI-Net by Netia. The fair value hasnbestablished based on the Management’s best ¢éstohthe probability
of future payments in connection with the commencadcellation process as at the acquisition datendgement has
estimated that there is a 100% probability of cHatien in relation to the capital expenditure aldg incurred and 80%
probability of cancellation in relation to futurapmital expenditure. Based on these percentageelhsasvthe estimation of
capital expenditures planned beyond 2004 the ndruidae of probable future payments as at Janu@ry2@04 has been
established at EUR 17,452 increased by PLN 5,8J8aéngation fees.

20



NETIA S.A.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in thousands)

This nominal value has been further adjusted tectthe present value of the probable future paymeis result of the
above, the fair value allocated to license feeilliss of EI-Net as at January 29, 2004 was edquaEUR 14,260 (PLN
67,896) increased by PLN 5,816 of prolongation .fees

Pursuant to the decision on the deferral of paymenxtending them to December 30, 2006, the adjudtroe the
discounted fair value of future payments has beearded as a gain in the income statements amguietifLN 13,363.

The following table presents the fair value of tlugstanding local license fee obligations of El-Betat January 29, 2004
as well as subsequent changes to the value ditiebihrough December 31, 2004:

(EUR) (PLN)

Nominal value of outstanding license fee obligadian..................c.evvv ..

Overdue installments (excluding prolongation fees) 75,690 360,388

Prolongation fees (in PLN ONIY).......cooiivimmmcme e 37,733

Instaliments payable later than 5 years.... .o ooeviiieieneeeiniiiiiieeeeenn 28,934 137,766

104,624 535,887

Less fair value adjustment to opening balances.............cccvvvvacceviivvnnen. (87,172) (446,973)
Nominal value of probable future payments as at Jamary 29, 2004.......... 17,452 88,914
Less imputed interest on license fee liabilities. (3,192) (15,202)
Fair value as at January 29, 2004,..........cooiuuvrieieeeiiiiiieiee e eeee e 14,260 73,712

of which:
Short term license fee liabilities (including progration fees) 11,666 61,361
Long term license fee liabilities............ccoeeeieiiiiiniis 2,594 12,351
Fair value as at January 29, 2004,.............ccoooiiiiiiniiiii e, 14,260 73,712
Effect of deferral of future payments (includingrislation of prolongation

fEES INEO EURY) ..iiiiiiiiiiiieie ettt e e e e st e e e e e s sninrneeae s (1,725) (13,363)
Interest accrued in the period ended December@Y 2..................... 725 3,647
Foreign exchange gains on the translation of EURnoas (9,908)
Carrying value as at December 31, 2004.........ccceoriiieiniinesiee e 13,260 54,088

Long distance license fee liabilities

The long distance license fee liabilities were thet subject of the new law regarding the canceltadif outstanding local
license fee liabilities. Therefore on April 18, Z)MWetia 1 paid the two outstanding license feégaltibn installments in the
amount of EUR 2,000 (PLN 8,526 at the exchange pat®ailing on that date) and the applicable prghiion fees of
approximately PLN 320, and penalty interest amawgnto approximately PLN 314. Furthermore, on Fetyrds, 2004 the
Company paid the installment due on January 314 20EUR 1,000 (PLN 4,761 at the exchange rate gilieg on that
date) increased by penalty interest of PLN 29. @mudry 31, 2005 the Company paid the last installreé EUR 1,000
(PLN 4,050 at the exchange rate prevailing on diase).

The total license fee liability as at December 3004 comprises the PLN 54,088 of El-Net’s lialektj which is long
term and PLN 4,049 of domestic long distance liediability, which is short term.
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Transfers and

Assets at adjusted cost........
Gross book value...............
Capital work in progress....

Accumulated amortization....

Accumulated impairment
and write-off provision.......

Net book value

December 31, reclassifications Purchase December 31,
2003 Increase Disposals of subsidiary 2004
(PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN)
188,017 - 12,524 (877) 746 200,410
4,462 22,485 (11,819) - - 15,128
192,479 22,485 705 (877) 746 215,538
December 31, Amortization Transfers and December 31,
2003 expense reclassifications Disposals 2004
(PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN)
70,396 27,489 (467) (850) 96,568
December 31, Write-off Transfers and December 31,
2003 charge reclassifications Disposals 2004
(PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN)
30,654 1,522 2,118 (14) 34,280
December 31, December 31,
2003 2004
(PLN) (PLN)
91,429 84,690

Impairment of non current assets

The significant changes in the current and expectedket conditions, which followed the liberalizati of the
telecommunications market, resulted in the devetpnof a new strategy and a revision of the Netiau@’'s previous
business plans. The Supervisory Board approvedehebusiness plan in 2003. The revised financiajegtions contained
in the new business plan led the Netia Group tdue¥a non-current assets for their possible impantm As a result the

Netia Group performed an impairment test.

In accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assetdietcarrying values of the Netia Group’s non-currasgets were
compared with their recoverable amounts, repredeloyethe higher of their net selling price and ealo use. The entire
telecommunications segment was identified as osk-ganerating unit. The recoverable amount ot#sh-generating unit
was based on a calculation of the value in use. Vidige in use was derived from the financial prigets of the new
business plan, which covers the period to DecerabeP008. After that period, the projections, prepafor the purposes of
the impairment test, make use of a long-term graaté, which is compatible with the industry prejecs for the operations
concerned. The discount rate used (of 10 %) repted the estimated risk adjusted cost of capitdleatime the assessment

was performed.

The test resulted in an impairment charge of PLB,6%5, which was recorded in the consolidated ireestatement for
the year ended December 31, 2003 and was allotatid non-current assets in the telecommunicaisegsnent on a pro
rata basis. The impact of the said charge on thepkar groups of assets is as follows:

Tangible fixed assets

Construction in progress

Computer software

Telecommunication licenses

581,007
25,912
29,254
163,522

799,695
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As at December 31, 2004 the Netia Group assessetharthere was any indication that the impairnhesg recognized
for non-current assets in the prior year may n@éorexist or may have decreased. After assessitigthe external and
internal sources of information, no indications vetentified which could result in a new assessmétiie impairment loss
recorded in 2003.

While the calculation of the discounted future cdlstws expected to arise from the use of assetsased upon
Management's best estimates of such cash flowd thenappropriate discount rate - these estimaiesaiude considerable
additional uncertainty. The actual outcome is u@erand Management estimates may change in theefub reflect
changes in the economic, technological and conieginvironment, in which the Netia Group operates.

10. Operating leases

As at December 31, 2004 the future minimum paympaysible under non-cancelable operating leasesagdi@lows:

(PLN)
NOt [ater tNAN L YEAN ...ttt e e e 24,147
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years. 41,805
Later than 5 YEAIS ......ueiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e e r e e e 56,144
122,096
11. Provisions
December 31, December 31,
2003 2004
(PLN) (PLN)
Headcount restructuring and termination benefits ,115 2,622
Loss on rental Contract............oeevvvvniiecemmmeeee e e, 3,455 3,569
Legal ClaiMS ...t 2,400 3,704
7,030 9,895
(O 18,7/ 1o o TR RRPRRRPPN
Short term 4,892 7,758
Long term 2,138 2,137
7,030 9,895
Headcount
restructuring Loss on
and termination rental
benefits contracts Legal claims Total
(PLN) (PLN) (PLN) (PLN)
As at January 1, 2004..........cccceunnnnee 1,175 3,455 2,400 7,030
Charged / (credited) to the income
StAteMENtS ..ccoeeev i e 2,285 (3,079) (500) (1,294)
Acquired at purchase of subsidiary..... 337 5,607 1,804 7,748
Used during the year.........cccccccoeeenees (2,175) (2,414) - (3,589)
2,622 3,569 3,704 9,895

Headcount restructuring and termination benefits

The provision, which was created in 2003, relatethe headcount reduction program announced byé#ta Group,
which assumed a decrease of the number of empldyett®e end of first quarter 2004. Furthermore @vision of PLN 474
was recorded in 2004 in connection with the restmireg of headcount of EI-Net acquired in Janua®@4£ The remaining
balance as at December 31, 2004 comprises thespyowreated for those committed redundancies witheremployment
contract has not been yet terminated. The Netiau@Gexpects that the cash outflows relating to thisvision will be
incurred through 2005.
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Loss on rental contracts
The provision was created for loss on rental catdrand relates to the excess of office spaceihadrtain locations in
Warsaw (rented by the Netia Group in connectiorhwiite acquisition ofwiat Internet and El-Net) for which no sub-

contractor has been found. The Netia Group expkatsthe cash outflows relating to this provisioitl e incurred through
2009.

Legal claims
The amounts represent a provision for certain legaés brought against the Netia Group entitiethdropinion of the

Management the outcome of those cases will not igsesto any significant losses beyond the amoprdsided. The Netia
Group is unable to determine the timing of caslilows related to those claims with reasonable amur

Accruals and other

December 31, December 31,

2003 2004

(PLN) (PLN)
CONSEIUCTION COSES .iiiiiiiiiiiiee e ettt eereeet e e e e e e e e e s s e e e e e e e sareeeeeesennnnes 8,330 2,811
UNINVOICEA SEIVICES. ..uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e eeesee et e e e e e e ee e e e e e s sebere e e s e s snnareeeeas 8,762 7,207
Interconnection charges 12,463 12,489
Holidays accrual ..........ccccooevvivieiees s 5,492 4,727
Employees bonuses and accrued SAlAri€s. .. . corrrrrrreeeesiiiiireeraesesisineeees 15,433 12,539
(@] (=T PP PP 12,221 9,237
62,701 49,010

Business combinations
El-Net acquisition

On January 29, 2004, Netia Ventures Sp. z o.o.r{tées”), one of the Company’s subsidiaries, aeqLit00% of the
voting shares of Regionalne Sieci Telekomunikacyf®et S.A. (“El-Net”), an alternative fixed-lineelecommunication
operator, having its main business activities io tig cities in Poland: Warsaw and Bydgoszcz. Tinelpase also included
100% of El-Net’'s debt to its previous shareholdsd o a consortium of banks. This acquisition wiscéed in accordance
with the Netia Group’s business plan, which assuthesNetia Group’s leading position in the consafiioh of the Polish
telecommunications market. On May 31, 2004 the Gowipentered into a share purchase agreement withukés as a
result of which it acquired 3,970,000 (not in thands) registered shares of nominal value of PLN (b@D in thousands)
each, constituting (together with 30,000 sharesiiaed in February 2004) 100% of the share capit@élloNet and a right to
100% of the votes at the El-Net's general meetwrigshareholders. The shares were transferred t€timepany in order to
settle the loans granted to Ventures in the totadunt of PLN 100,834 (including interest). AlongthvEl-Net's shares, the
Company acquired also the El-Net’s liabilities e total nominal value of PLN 125,653 (includin¢eirest).

The Netia Group accounted for the acquisition ofNEt using the purchase method and started comsiolid the
financial statements of El-Net as of February 1040adjusting the consolidated income statemendstia® consolidated
balance sheet for material transactions, which folake between January 29, 2004 and February }4.Z0% acquired
business contributed revenue of PLN 132,844 anfitgrom operations of PLN 28,259 in the year end@etember 31,
2004, after taking into account negative goodwillogtization of PLN 5,798 and intercompany transaddieliminations, and
the carrying values of its assets and liabilitit®acember 31, 2004 were PLN 325,514 and PLN 85 /E&pectively. Cash
and cash equivalents held by EI-Net amounted to PQN63 as at December 31, 2004.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill abefate of the acquisitions are as follows :

(PLN)
Purchase consideration, including transaction cafs®.N 5,353 — cash paid....... 101,688
Less fair value of net assets acquired ....ccceeeeeenn... (179,466)
Negative gOOAWIll ............ooiiiii e 77,778
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The purchase consideration made by the Netia Groegchange for control over the net assets of &l-@hcompassed:
the price paid for 100% shares of PLN 3,100, thewarts paid for El-Net’s liabilities to banks ane threvious shareholder
of PLN 93,235 and transaction costs of PLN 5,353.

The Netia Group performed the preliminary valuat@inthe assets and liabilities, including indeperidealuation of
acquired fixed assets, during the three-month deeioded March 31, 2004. This valuation has beedated during the
period ended December 31, 2004 based on additiof@mation obtained. Further changes to the vanamay be
introduced in 2005 if additional information in pext of acquired assets and liabilities is obtain®dch additional
information may include information related to @reguisition contingencies and calculation of tHatesl deferred income
taxes. The Netia Group will continue evaluating fe@lues of these assets and liabilities, which mesult in further
adjustments to the carrying amounts of identifial#eassets.

In particular, the Netia Group recorded El-Netabiiities for telecommunication license fees, athatacquisition date,
based on the fair value of future payments takimg consideration estimates regarding the proltghifipositive outcome of
the process of cancellation of license fee oblayeti(for details see Note 7). As a result, EI-NBtsnse fee obligations had
a significant impact on the estimated fair valu@ef assets acquired which resulted in negativelwiblcas at the acquisition
date of PLN 77,778 compared with the goodwill ofN°817,300 provisionally accounted for before Septen80, 2004.

The Netia Group amortized the negative goodwillroe weighted average remaining useful life of tioa-current
assets of EI-Net (12 years) up to the date of adlomtf IFRS 3, i.e., January 1, 2005. At the ddtadoption of IFRS 3, the
whole amount of unamortized negative goodwill veidl transferred to retained earnings. The total &ipadion of negative
goodwill from the date of the purchase of EI-Netareled in the year ended December 31, 2004 amotmtdN 5,798.

The assets and liabilities recognized in the codatdd balance sheet arising from the acquisitienat the acquisition
date, are as follows:

(PLN)
Cash and cash equIValeNtS ...........ooiiiiiieecie e 6,080
Receivables 14,017
INVENIOTIES ... 670
Prepayments 607
Fixed assets..........ccceeeeeeeeennnn. 287,262
Intangible assets ............ccceeue 746
Investments................ 43
License fee liabilities (73,712)
Other liabilities ........cccccceevcvvvennennn. (56,247)
Fair value of net assets acquired 179,466

Netia 1

During the year ended December 31, 2004 the Netagsadjusted the fair values of assets of Ne@aduired on May
21, 2008, at the purchase of the remaining 11%hafes capital of Netia 1. The change in the faiugabf PLN 7,500
concerned license assets and was recorded asuestnaeljit to negative goodwill. The remaining portiddmegative goodwill
was credited to the income statement in the yede@BDecember 31, 2004.
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Movements in negative goodwiill

December 31, December 31,

2003 2004
(PLN) (PLN)
Gross book value:
At the beginning of the Year ...........oooceeae e 54,627

Negative goodwill / (goodwill) provisionally recoed on transaction date. 54,627 (317,300)
Subsequent change due to finalization of the falme assessment of the
acquired net assets

............................................................................. - 387,578
Atthe end Of the YEAN ......ceeiiiiiee e e e 54,627 124,905
Accumulated amortization
At the beginning of the year - (25,828)
Negative goodwill amortization recognized as incatugng the year............ (25,828) (21,420)
Atthe end Of the YEAN .....cceeiiiiiei e e (25,828) (47,248)
Net negative goodwill as at the beginning of tharye...............ccccoiiceenneen. - 28,799
Net negative goodwill as at the end of the year. ............cccoeeeeieeiiiee e, 28,799 77,657

Sale of subsidiaries

On March 31, 2004, the Company sold to Fiducia $twment Sp. z 0.0., with its seat in Warsaw (“Fiducivestment”),
the following holdings in its subsidiaries: 400 s¥sof Netia Holdings B.V., 400 shares of Netiaditoys Il B.V. and 200

shares of Netia Holdings Il B.V. The total saleice for the transaction amounted to PLN 3. A sumyraf financial
information regarding the above sale is presengdail

% of Profit / (loss)
Subsidiary interest sold  on disposal
(PLN)
Netia HoldINGS BV ..cooooiiiiiiiiiiee et 100 (150)
Netia HoldINGS [ BV ....ooooiiiiiiiiee e cceeeeteee e 100 167
Netia HoldINGS [ BV ..o ccciiiieeee et e 100 63

Furthermore, on March 31, 2008wiat Internet, sold to Fiducia Investment thedaling holdings in its subsidiaries:
835,130 shares of Multinet S.A., 435,660 shard®8fS.A., 40 shares of Pik-Net Sieci Rozlegte Sp.az, 80,000 shares of
Publiczny Dosip do Internetu Sp. z 0.0. and 1,368,420 share®isk® OnLine Holding S.A. The total sales price tloe
transaction amounted to PLN 4. A summary of finahitiformation regarding the above sale is presebédow.

Furthermore, on March 31, 2004, the subsidiarySwniat Internet, Polska OnLine Holding S.A., sold Eiducia

Investment 7,649 shares of Polska OnLine Sp. zfora price of PLN 1. A summary of financial infoation regarding the
above sale is presented below:

% of Profit / (loss)
Subsidiary interest sold  on disposal
(PLN)
MUIEINEL S.A. ot e e e e e et e e mmm s e e e e e e s ennes 100 (561)
100 622
Pik-Net Sieci Rozlegte Sp. Z 0.0. ...ccoovivieeeeeiiiiiivimieee e 100 (173)
Publiczny Dostp do Internetu Sp. Z 0.0. .....ccoovcvvviescmmmmmeeeeee e 100 (112)
Polska OnLine Holding S.A. .....ooiiiiiiiiis e 90 30
Polska ONLINE SP. Z 0.0, ..uvvviiiiieeiiiiiierme s eeirete e e e enenee 100 542

The net results for the year ended December 314 20@ the year ended December 31, 2003 of all efatove
subsidiaries had no material impact on the conatdidl financial statements of the Netia Group irs¢hgeriods. As a result
the sale of above subsidiaries is not regardedsasrtinued operation.
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15. Installment obligations

The outstanding installment obligations comprisesth claims reduced in the Polish arrangement pditge
(including guarantees given by Netia S.A. to thddécs of 1997 Notes, 1999 Notes and 2000 Notes tandwap
counterparties), which were not exchanged intoeseH shares during the restructuring process (sete R). These
obligations were originally scheduled for paymeattcording to court decisions, at their nominal mdlvalues between
2007 and 2012 and bear no interest. As at DeceB81he2003 the installment obligations were recordiedhe balance sheet
at the present value of the future payment obbgatiusing the discount rate of 11.02% being thectffe interest rate of the
2002 Notes.

In connection with the decision made by the Netiaup in November 2004 on the early repayment ofthtstanding
installment obligations, the Netia Group reclassifthem to current liabilities and as at Decemlder 2004 recorded at
nominal value of installment obligations of PLN 822. The difference between their previously reedrdarrying value and
nominal value of PLN 5,699 has been charged asdinhexpense to the income statement in addibdhe discount charge
recorded in 2004 of PLN 466. The restructuring itoesl have been entitled to exchange their resiring claim for the
ordinary series | shares at the price of PLN 1.@826per share which shall be payable by the meassteoff with the
installment obligations (see Note 2 for furtherailg) or to receive cash payments in the amountsistent with the nominal
value of the outstanding installment obligations.

The carrying amounts of these obligations approtenttaeir fair value.

16. Corporate income tax

Year ended
December 31, December 31,

2003 2004

(PLN) (PLN)
Provision for income taxes:
(104 =T o SO PR PUTP R PTOTPPPPN 254 (500)
Deferred, net.......... - 46,843
Income tax benefit 254 46,343

Current tax

The tax on the Netia Group’s profit before tax eliff from the theoretical amount that would arisegithe tax rate applicable to
profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2003 2004
(PLN) (PLN)

Profit / (10SS) DEfOre taX........ccccvvviiiieeece e (728,779) 113,668
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to Profit..........cccccecvveerneneen. (196,770) 21,597
Income not subject to CUrrent taxX...........commmeeeeeeeenns (2,815) (21,512)
Expenses not deductible for current tax purpoSeS..........ccccevvuevneen. 291,084 50,279
Utilization of previously unrecognized tax l0SSes.........cccccceevvunnnen. (10,497) (54,277)
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax assstrecognized ...... (82,083) 4,193
Recognition of previously unrecognized deferredasset

(opening balances) - (46,623)
Previous periods’ taxes returned... 827 -
INncometax DENETit........cciviiiiiiiii e (254) (46,343)

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the @om and its subsidiaries for 2003 was 27% and2@94 and
onwards — 19%. The change in rates is connectddtiétchange of enacted tax legislation in Poland.
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Deferred tax
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities areedffghen there is a legally enforceable right teefffcurrent tax asset

against current tax liabilities and when the deférincome taxes relate to the same fiscal authdritg offset amounts are as
follows:

December 31,

2004
(PLN)
Deferred tax assets:
- Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more 1Bamonths..............ceeeeeeee. (33,161)
- Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 font............ccccceeeeeviiiinnenn. (37,575)
(70,736)
Deferred tax liabilities:
- Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered afterenthan 12 months.................. 16,264
- Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered withid honths................................ 7,629
23,893
(46,843)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabildi@sng the year, without taking into consideratitwe offsetting of
balances, is as follows:

Interest income

and foreign Depreciation
Deferred exchange and

Deferred tax liabilities revenue differences impairment Total
As at January 1, 2004...........ccccuneneen. - - - -

- Charged to the Income Statement 12,655 2,919 8,319 23,893
As at December 31, 2004.................. 12,655 2,919 8,319 23,893

Depreciation
and Provisions for Accrued
Deferred tax assets impairment assets Tax losses expenses Other Total
As at January 1, 2004..........ccovvvveennee - - - - - -
- Credited to the Income Statement (41,879) (10,184) (5,044) (11,486) (2,143) (70,736)

As at December 31, 2004.................. (41,879) (10,184) (5,044) (11,486) (2,143) (70,736)

As of December 31, 2004 the Management updatgatétdous year's assessment regarding the recogruofiaeferred
income tax. The new assessment considered thatdti@ Group expects that future taxable profitd @ generated based
on the 2005 budget and 2005-2008 business planagésnent’'s assessment also considered factors suttfeastability and
trend of past earnings; the nature of the busia@skindustry; the economic environment in which Metia Group is
located; and the stability of the legislation toieththe companies in the Netia Group are subjentethe realization of the
tax benefits through the projected 2005-2008 taxgbfits became probable, Netia recognized a efgriebd tax asset of
PLN 46,843 as of December 31, 2004. The recogndfomet the deferred tax asset resulted in an irctar benefit in the
consolidated income statement of PLN 46,843, diréstreasing the Netia Group’s net result for ylear ended December
31, 2004.

As of December 31, 2004, the Netia Group had tdlctible temporary differences of PLN 828,788 andtilized tax
loss carry-forwards of PLN 671,780 (total potentiaferred tax asset of PLN 285,108). Deferred iredax assets are
recognized for deductible temporary differences taxdoss carry-forwards to the extent that thdization of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is piolea

The Netia Group did not recognize deferred tax tassk PLN 49,793 relating to tax losses of PLN 262, of the
Company due to insufficient future taxable profdsealize these tax losses. These unrecognizeldsags of the Company
available for use as at December 31, 2004 willrexini the following years: PLN 134,539 in 2005 &1idN 127,532 in 2006.
In addition the Netia Group did not recognize defdrtax assets of PLN 73,835 relating to tax loss¢d_N 388,604 of the
Company'’s subsidiaries due to their expiry uponekigected merger of those subsidiaries with the gzom.
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Furthermore, due to the lack of strong evidenciitfre taxable profits, which may be generated hdy2008, the Netia
Group did not recognize the deferred income tartassSPLN 114,637, relating to deductible tempordifferences of PLN
603,353.

The deferred tax calculation is based upon Managésméest estimates, which contain a consideratsleuat of
uncertainty and the actual outcome may differ. €hestimates may be altered to reflect changes énettonomic,
technological and competitive environment in whitle Netia Group operates, therefore the Manageméhtontinue
analyzing the Netia Group’s deferred tax positisrateach balance sheet date in the future.

The Polish tax system has restrictive provisionsgimuping of tax losses for multiple legal enstiander common
control, such as those of the Netia Group. Thush ed the Company’s subsidiaries may only utili‘edwn tax losses to
offset taxable income in subsequent years. In mtditosses of subsidiaries, which are plannedetmbrged to Netia S.A. in
2005 cannot be utilized. Losses are not indexéufftation. Tax losses are permitted to be utilioeer five years with a 50%
utilization restriction per annum.

Shareholders’ equity
Shareholders’ Rights (not in thousands)

At December 31, 2003, the Company’s share capitasisted of 344,485,821 ordinary shares and of0lg@Geries Al
shares with a par value of PLN 1 per share. Eagdmary share had one vote at shareholders' meefiihgsholder of 1,000
series Al shares had the right to nominate one reewftthe Supervisory Board. The majority of votéthe Supervisory
Board elect the Management Board.

On May 16, 2003, the Company issued 64,848,442antgtto holders of record of the Company’s shasesf ®ecember
22, 2002, which began trading on the Warsaw Staoath&nge on May 27, 2003. Subsequently exerciseanfants into
series J shares has commenced. As at Decembe®®4,, 22,140,102 of warrants have been exercisedren@ompany’s
share capital was accordingly increased by 22, D20s&ries J shares.

In addition during 2004 the Company issued 771 @Mtinary series K shares with a nominal value oNFPLeach, due
to the exercise by certain persons authorized thefeheir rights arising from the Plan.

As a result at December 31, 2004 the Company’sestegpital consisted of 366,955,325 ordinary shanesof 1,000 of
series Al shares (par value of PLN 1 per sharé¢shres issued by the Company were fully paid.

Share Capital

Number of shares
authorized and issued

(not in thousands) Share capital
(PLN)
At December 31, 2002.........cceeeviureeiniienanins 31,419,172 203,285
Registration of series H shares .................... 312,626,040 312,626
Decrease of par value of shares..................... - (171,866)
Exchange of warrants for series J shares ......... 441,609 442
At December 31, 2003.........ccccocveeeriinieennnes 344,486,821 344,487
Exchange of warrants for series J shares ......... 21,698,493 21,698
Issuance of series K shares................cceeuee. 771,011 771
At December 31, 2004........cccccocveeeeiiiieennnne. 366,956,325 366,956

Other reserves
In the year ended December 31, 2004 the Compargsseifted the reserves resulting from the finanmastructuring, to

the accumulated deficit from other reserves in ¢besolidated financial statements. The reclassifinafollowed the
resolution no. 2, of the Annual Shareholders’ Megtf Netia S.A. dated June 12, 2003.
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Distributable reserves

The Company and its subsidiaries prepare theirnirzh statements for statutory purposes accordmgPolish
Accounting Act of 29 September 1994 (uniform tedurnal of Laws of 2002, No. 76, item 694 with lient adjustments). In
accordance with the Polish Code of Commercial Congzaof 15 September 2000 (Journal of Laws of 208%,94, item
1037 as amended) only those reserves, which rlatet profits of individual companies shown initrgtatutory financial
statements, are available for distribution to shalders.

Other supplementary capital

The amounts transferred to other supplementaryataplate to standalone net profit of PLN 42,51 Netia S.A. for the
year ended December 31, 2003 and the surplusngl&i merger of Netia S.A with its operating sulmigs of PLN
161,048 recorded in Netia S.A. 2003 standalonentiiz statements. They were transferred to othpplsmentary capital
pursuant to resolution no. 2 of the Annual Shamée Meeting of Netia S.A. dated June 15, 2004tH¥ supplementary
capital only PLN 42,517 in addition to the net jirof Netia S.A. for the year ended December 310426f PLN 120,656
would potentially be available for distribution $tareholders in form of dividend or buy-back of tbempany’s shares.
Following the meeting of the Company’s Supervis@gard held on March 1, 2005 the details of the Mamaent's
proposals regarding the distribution will be annmeah

Stock options (number of shares not in thousands)

The Company has in place an incentive plan undechwsenior executives, employees, co-operatorssudtamts and
board members of the managing bodies of the Netimmay be entitled to receive additional comptosan the form of
the right to acquire the ordinary shares of the gamy. Option holders will be entitled to receiveieg K shares. Up to
18,373,785 ordinary series K shares may be issuesignt to the Plan, of which 771,011 were isshealigh December 31,
2004.

Upon exercise of the options, Netia will issue &xte exercising participant the number of sharesessmting such
participant’s gain resulting from the exercise loé tptions, representing the difference betweerexsecise price of the
Company’s shares and strike price of the optiom® Participant will not be required to pay thekgrprice ranging from
PLN 2.53 to PLN 4.23. The purchase prices of thes& shares (equal to their nominal value of PLNer share) are paid
from the cash bonuses, which are granted to thecisikeg option holders by the Company. In April ahthe 2003 as well as
April and October 2004 the Supervisory Board appdothe issue of 13,373,261 options under the Plan.

Movements in the number of share options outstandirder the Plan are as follows:

Average strike Average strike
Options price Options price Options
2003 2004
At beginning of year.........cc.ccocvviiiiieaee. - - - 7,936,975
Granted.......cceeeveeriieniiee s e 2.56 8,081,943 2.81 2,228,877
Forfeited/ expired ..........ccceeviiieeinirieecen, 2.53 (144,968) 2.53 (1,087,257)
Exercised - - 3.27 (1,872,498)
Atend ofyear.........cocoeviiiiiiiccnne . 2.56 7,936,975 2.65 7,206,097

The total number of vested options was 4,759,7t4h31,577 as at December 31, 2004 and 2003,atdsdg. The
vesting period for the options is up to three ydeom the date of grant or upon achieving certgiecified conditions. The
options are exercisable until December 20, 2007%io@p exercised in 2004 resulted in 771,011 of ehdreing issued at
PLN 1.00 each.

All options granted previously under the old stogiion plan of the Company expired at January 0420
The Company does not recognize the options urgtibitite of exercise. Upon the exercise of optiorCthpany charges
the nominal value of shares issued increased bgdhkts of exercise to the income statement asiessland benefits. The

current year expense relating to the Plan amount®LN 771 in 2004 and nil in 2003.

As of January 1, 2005 the Company has implemeB& 2. For further details see Note 3.
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Minority interest
December 31, December 31,
2003 2004
(PLN) (PLN)
At beginning Of the YEAI ...........ovviii e e e e 17,499 4,328
Share of net profit of SUbSIdIArIies.........cceevvvieiiiiiiii s 554 858
Acquisition of shares of Netia 1 ............oommmmeeeeeeiiiiiiieee e (13,725) -
At eNd OF the VAT ....ciiiiiiiiiiiiii e e 4,328 5,186

On May 21, 2003 the Company purchased the remaitifdg of share capital of Netia 1 Sp. z 0.0. for PR from
TeliaSonera AB (publ.). Netia 1 was subsequentlygex into the Company.

Significant subsidiaries of the company

The consolidated financial statements include tlw®ants of the Company's directly or indirectlychelbsidiaries (after
taking into account the merger of the operatingiliarries into the Company, which took place onddeloer 31, 2003):

Ownership Percentage

Subsidiary December 31, December 31,
2003 2004

Subsidiaries held directly:

UNI-NEE SP. Z 0.0. wiiiiiiieiiiiieii et ereeei ettt e e e e s ar e e e e e e aannes 58 58
NEHASWIAE SA. ©...iiieiieieieircetee ettt eere ettt 100 100
Polbox Sp. z 0.0.*** .............. N/a 100
Netia Globe S.A. ...ccccoeiiiiiiieen. 100 100
Netia Ventures Sp. 2 0.0. ............... 100 100
RST EI-NEE S.A. ettt et e e - 100
Subsidiaries held indirectly:

Netia MODIIE SP. Z 0.0, ..ooiiiiiiiiee et sttt e e e e e e e e e e srrae e e e e e saeaaeeeas - 100
SWIAL INTEIMET SLAF ..eviiiietetete et sttt s et 100 100

* Subsidiaries consolidated since the acquisitibfvaat Internet group that took place in April 2003.
** Polbox was sold fronSwiat Internet to Netia on May 31, 2004.

All subsidiaries are incorporated in Poland.

Salaries and benefits

Year ended
December 31, December 31,

2003 2004

(PLN) (PLN)
Wages and SAIAMES .......ccouiiiiiiiee e iceeeeeee e 112,046 109,925
Social Security COStS ......cccvvvieeeiiiiieereeeiieeeeen, 11,404 13,444
Defined contribution plan (the State Plan) 6,683 6,817
Other employee DENETILS ......cooii it et 2,907 4,027
133,040 134,213

The Netia Group is legally required to make conttitns to Government’s retirement benefit schemainig the years
2004 and 2003 the Group paid contributions ateo&8.76% of gross salaries and is not requiradake any contributions
in excess of this statutory rate.
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Other operating expenses

Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2003 2004
(PLN) (PLN)
Cost of traffic termination ...............ooovceeeeeeiiii 4,153 33,770
Information technology services 20,787 16,411
EXternal SErVICES......oooovveiiiiiie e 10,683 17,014
Bad debt EXPENSE ......uiiiiiiiciiiiee e 14,402 10,251
Office and car MaINENANCE ...........uuuuuuueeeeeeerrrrrrerrreerreerrerrrennan. 19,415 9,138
Materials and ENergy .........cccuveeiiieiiiimmeeeieee e 7,683 9,092
Mailing Services ........ccccoevvvvveeeeeeiiiciennen. 5,008 7,069
Travel and accommodation . 4,300 4,822
Other OPerating COSES .......uuiiiiiiiiiutes e e e eiirreee e e e s ainbereeeee s 6,324 13,650
92,755 121,217
Financial income / (expense), net
Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2003 2004
(PLN) (PLN)
INEEIESE INCOME ....eiii et e e eeeeeeeeas 6,578 9,516
Gain on deferral of license fee payments (see MPte........cccccvvvveeeiiiciiinneneenn, - 13,363
Gain on sale of SUbSIdIArNES ...........cooi i, - 340
Gain on sale of available-for-sale financial assets 3,946 -
Gain on fair value adjustment of financial assets...................... 2,437 3,278
Foreign exchange gains / (I0SSES), NEL......covvcuiiiieeeiiiiiiiiiee e (19,839) 4,805
INtEreSt EXPENSE ... (16,895) (4,448)
Amortization of discount on installment obligatiofsge Note 15)..................... (566) (6,165)
Amortization of NOtES ISSUANCE COSES ......ccuvvrieeieiiiiiiiiieee e (1,265) -
Write-off of notes issuance costs due to early mgat@on of 2002 Notes............ (40,211) -
(©]1 01T SNt 194 7,185
(65,621) 27,874

Earnings per share

Basic

Basic earnings per share have been calculated loeséte net profit / (loss) for each period divided the weighted
average number of shares in issue during the yida.weighted average number of shares in issueifntdtousands)
excludes 468,648 treasury shares in each of thedsepresented.

Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2003 2004
NEt Profit / (I0SS) ..eveeeeeeeiiiiiiiiii ettt (729,079) 159,153
Weighted average number of shares in issue (rtbbimsands) ..............cc........ 343,849,029 358,096,167
Basic earnings per share (Not in thoUSANAS).--mceeeeeivvvieiiiiieeiieceee e 12) 0.44
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Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated adjugtiegweighted average number of ordinary sharegamgig to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shewr&@he Company has three categories of dilutiverg@l ordinary shares:
warrants (which upon their exercise trigger theiésef the series J shares), the employees’ stowsnsp(which upon their
exercise trigger the issue of the series K shaaes) the series | shares which were offered byCtimapany to its creditors in
connection with the earlier repayment of outstagdimstallment obligations in February 2005. For #ieare options and
warrants a calculation is done to determine the bmmof shares that could have been acquired av#ie based on the
monetary value of the subscription rights attactedhe outstanding share options and warrants. niheber of shares
calculated as above is compared with the numbshafes that would have been issued assuming theisxef the share
options and warrants.

In calculation of the diluted earnings per sharetti@ year ended December 31, 2003, the Group &ssnmexercise of
stock options and warrants since the exercise woaig antidilutive effect.

Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2003 2004
NEt Profit / (I0SS) ..vveeeeeeeiiiiiiieiie ettt e (729,079) 159,153
Weighted average number of shares in issue (rtbbinsands) .............ccceeeeeee. 343,849,029 398,167
Adjustments for:
= SArE OPLIONS...ciiiieiiiieie et e e e e e e e e as - 3,252,657
- Warrants - 20,127,978
Weighted average number of ordinary shares fotetilearnings per share
(NOL IN thOUSANAS) ....eeiiiiieie e 343,849,029 381,476,802
Diluted earnings per share (not in thousandS)..ccee...cocvvvveieieeeiiiiiiieee e 12) 0.42

24. Related party transactions
Changes in Management Board
Effective February 25, 2004 Mr. Zbigniew Lagki resigned from his position in the ManagemenrarBo
Effective February 29, 2004 Ms. Elizabeth McElregigned from her position in the Management Board.

Effective May 1, 2004 Ms. Irene Cackett was appintlember of the Management Board holding a pasitioChief
Commercial Officer.

Effective October 29, 2004 Mr. Kent Holding was ajmped Member of the Management Board and Chie&riéral
Officer of the Company.

Changes in Supervisory Board

On January 23, 2004 the Company was informed ablutAndrzej Wierchski's resignation from his position as a
member of the Company's Supervisory Board. Hignegion was effective on March 2, 2004.

On March 11, 2004 the Extraordinary General Meetih§hareholders of the Company adopted resolutionshanges
in the composition of the Company’s Supervisory Bpgursuant to which Mr. Jarostaw Bauc, Mr. Morgakberg
and Ms. Ewa-Maria Robertson retired from their foss and Mr. Mark Holdsworth, Mr. Hubert Janisz&iy#1r. Bogustaw
Kasprzyk and Ms. Alicja Kornasiewicz were appointeembers of the Company’s Supervisory Board.

Options granted to members of the Management Board
As at December 31, 2004, the total number of optigranted to members of the Company's ManagemeardBmder
the Plan, was 5,526,888, of which 3,080,561 veatedf that date. Strike prices for the options tg@ro the Management

Board range between PLN 2.53 to 4.23 per sharenTdrket price of the Company’s shares at Decembe?2®4 was PLN
4.46 per share.
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The movements in the number of options held by Men:bf the Company's Management Board are presbated:

Options

At beginning Of YEaAI .......cuuviiiii et ereeeie e aaees

Granted.......coeeeeeeeeiiiiiiie s
Forfeited/ expired

Status changed due to resignation from Manage mesutcB.
EXEICISEA ..ottt
AL ENA OF YA ...ttt e e

As at January 1, 2003

Granted..........cccoooeeiii e,
As at December 31, 2003............ceevvvirrvennnnns
Granted...........ccooeeeiii e,
Forfeited/ expired .........cccceeeeeiiiiivie e

Status changed due to resignation from

Management Board ...........cccceeervieeenimmnnne
EXErciSed .......ccovvvieiiieiiiiiiiiii e

As at December 31, 2004..........c.cccvvvvvvvninnnnn.

Management Board remuneration and Supervisory Boaeinuneration

Year ended December 31, 2003

Compensation and related costs associated witkerdumembers of the Company Management Boards aper8siory
Boards during the year ended December 31, 2003 rsteduio PLN 5,897. Furthermore, the terminationelfiés for the
former members of the Management Board pursuatiteio resignations of PLN 7,501 were recognized@s in the year

ended December 31, 2003.

Year ended December 31, 2004

The compensation and related cost of remuneratibmember of the Company’s Management and SupewBoard

are presented below:

December 31, December 31,

2003 2004
- 6,342,331
6,342,331 1,359,071
- (664,435)
..................... - (362,419)
- (1,147,660)
6,342,331 5,526,888
Former
members of the
Wojciech Paul Irene Management
Madalski Kearney Cackett Board Total
4,530,236 362,419 - 1,449,676 6,342,331
4,530,236 362,419 - 1,449,676 6,342,331
- 362,419 271,814 724,838 1,359,071
- - - (664,435) (664,435)
- - - (362,419) (362,419)
- (1,147,660) (1,147,660)
4,530,236 724,838 271,814 - 5,526,888

Remuneration of current members of the Managemeatd(including bonus paid and

= Todod (U 1=To ) ORI
Wojciech Madalski 1,978
KENE HOITING ...ttt e s e st e e e 258
Irene Cackett .................. 1,078
PAUI KEBINEY ...ttt ettt e e e e s abe b e e e e e e e s atbreee e e e e snntneeee 1,115
4,429
Remuneration and termination benefits for the farmembers of the Management Board...... 2,161

Remuneration of current members of the SuperviBoard

Nicolas Cournoyer R 6
Richard MOON..........cooviiiiiiiieee e 111
Bogustaw Kasprzyk...........ccccceeeiniiiiianee 52
MAIK HOIASWOITN ...ttt et e e e 52
Alicja Kornasiewicz 52
Hubert Janiszewski 66
Andrzej Radzimiski 88
427
Remuneration and termination benefits for the farmembers of the Supervisory Board....... 149
Remuneration of the members of management boamsishsidiaries...........cccccccvvviiiiiiineannn. 330
Lo ] 7= 1 7,496
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25. Commitments and contingencies

Capital expenditures contracted for at the balateset date but not recognized in the consolidateahéial statements
amount to PLN 10,315 as at December 31, 2003 and 22,743 (USD 8,274 at the December 31, 2004 exgghaate) as at
December 31, 2004.

Millennium (not in thousands)

In August and September 2000, the Company entetectertain agreements to acquire all of the onthtey equity of
Millennium Communications S.A. (“Millennium”), a pvider of telecommunications services in Warsawtde advances
were made to Millennium following the execution dfe agreements, and currently a loan of EUR 2.Bamil
(PLN 11,8 million at the December 31, 2004 exchangte) increased by the applicable interest istanténg from
Millennium. In December 2000, the Company brougtdlam for the repayment of the loan against Mifierm in the
District Court in Warsaw. The matter is still pemgl In 2001, a valuation allowance of PLN 17.0limil was recorded as
other operating expense against the outstandingiiastnneceivable from Millennium as a result of tivers described above.

On February 11, 2003, the District Court ruledhia Company’s favor for the return of the principatount of the loan
and the related interest. That judgment was apgdayeMillennium. Following a question on the mattgrlaw to the
Supreme Court, the Court of Appeal announced judgnoa October 6, 2004 stating that the District €anade a
procedural mistake, which caused the case to benezt for re-examination.

In September 2003, Newman Finance Corp. (“NewmaMi)lennium’s sole shareholder, filed a claim agsirthe
Company for damages of PLN 45.4 million, whichhe equivalent of USD 11.5 million plus interestraed since the date
of filing the claim until the date of payment. Thiaim was filed for damages incurred when a sécwvas placed over
Millennium’s shares between January 4, 2000 andeNdber 1, 2002 in connection with litigation conéegnMillennium
failure to perform the agreements entered into Augund September 2002. The matter is pending, landéxt hearing is
scheduled for May 25, 2005.

On November 7, 2003 Millennium and Genesis Sp.oz Genesis”), two shareholders of the Compangdficlaims
with the Regional Court in Warsaw for the suspemgibthe registration in the relevant registry loé tCompany’s merger
with certain of its subsidiaries pursuant to a k&$an adopted by the Company’s Extraordinary Geh&hareholders’
Meeting on October 30, 2003. The Regional Couristeged the merger in the register of entreprenenr®ecember 31,
2003. Also, the court refused to allow MillenniumdaGenesis to participate in the registration pedoegs, which
Millennium and Genesis appealed with the Distriou@ in Warsaw on January 12, 2004. On Septemh20@ the District
Court in Warsaw allowed Millennium and Genesis tntigipate in the registration proceedings. Sepacdims were
brought by Millennium and Genesis with the Distt@burt in Warsaw requesting the invalidation of teeolution on the
Company’s merger adopted by the Company’s Extraargi General Shareholders’ Meeting on October 8032 The
Company received the claims on June 3, 2004 aritioped the court to dismiss them both as whollyounded and also
requested that the shareholders make a paymeriiregtemn times the amount of Netia’s court costdefaring is scheduled
for March 30, 2005.

On June 1, 2004, the District Court in Warsaw désad at the first hearing the claim requestingirtkialidation of a
resolution adopted at Netia's Extraordinary Gendfaleting of Shareholders held on August 30, 200&h wegard to
extending the mandates of certain members of NeBapervisory Board, deeming it wholly unfoundetie Tudgment is
final and not appealable.

Millennium and Newman filed motions for the dectara of bankruptcy of the Company on July 16, 2694 July 21,
2004. On December 14, 2004 the District Courttfer Capital City of Warsaw, XVII Bankruptcy and Resturing -
Commercial Department in Warsaw (the “Court”) disseid both motions. The decision can be appealed.

Management, having obtained legal advice, doebelive that the settlement of the matters desgrdtmve will have
a material adverse effect on the Netia Group’snfoie condition. Accordingly no liability has beescorded for the claims.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in thousands)

Minority shareholders

On August 1, 2002, the Company received a copy dain filed with the District Court in Warsaw by andividual
shareholder demanding the cancellation of sectldnsll and 13 of Resolution No. 2 adopted by theng@any's General
Meeting on April 4, 2002. The individual sharehalad¢aimed that the distribution of the Company’srraats under the
financial restructuring was harmful to the minorghareholders and violated good custom. On Augdst2002, the
Company responded requesting the District Coudigmiss the claim. At the court hearing held obrbary 4, 2004, the
District Court in Warsaw decided to forward theimiato the Regional Court for the capital city of Waw for its
determination. The hearing in this case was adgaltill April 21, 2005 before the Regional Count. & second similar
matter, a minority shareholder's claim was disntidsethe Regional Court in Warsaw on merits howekierjudgment can
be appealed.

Management, having obtained legal advice, doebelive that the settlement of the matters desgrittmve will have
a material adverse effect on the Netia Group’srfiie condition. Accordingly no liability has beeecorded for the claims.

Tax contingent liability

Regulations relating to value-added tax, corpoirateme tax, and payroll (social) taxes have bedicatly changed in
comparison to the tax regulations, which existeédrpio the economic and political transformationHoland. The lack of
reference to well-established regulations and ¢keively short period in which these new tax regjohs have been in place
results in there being a lack of clarity and caesisy in the regulations. Frequent contradictionegal interpretations both
within government bodies and between companiegamdrnment bodies create uncertainties and comflicix settlements,
together with other areas of legal compliance (ewgstoms or foreign exchange law) are subject¥@ew and investigation
by a number of authorities, which are entitledrtppose severe fines, penalties and interest chafpese facts create tax
risks in Poland that are substantially more sigaifit than those typically found in countries witbremdeveloped tax system.
The tax authorities may at any time inspect thekbamnd records and may impose additional tax assggs with penalty
interest and penalties within 5 years from the @fnthe year when a tax is due.

The Company’s Management is not aware of any cistantes, which may give rise to a potential mdtéakhility in

this respect.

Subsequent events

Issuance of Series K shares (not in thousands)

On January 10, 2005 the Company issued 163,088arsdseries K shares with a nominal value of PLMWHich give
the right to 163,088 votes at Netia’'s general nmgetif shareholders, due to the exercise by cepeisons authorized thereto
of their rights arising from the Plan. On Janua®y 2005 the issued shares were admitted to traglinthe Warsaw Stock
Exchange. As of March 1, 2005 the total numbereoies K shares issued amounted to 943,099.

Close of subscription of series | shares (not irotlsands)

On February 16, 2005 the subscription of the Corysaseries “I” shares was completed. 5,875,610esef” shares
were allocated out of a total of 18,373,785 sefieshares offered in connection with the decisiom early repayment of
outstanding installment obligations resulting frbletia’s arrangement proceedings approved in 2088.pFice of the series
“I” shares was PLN 1.0826241 per share.

Exercise of warrants (not in thousands)

As at February 28, 2005 27,803,472 of warrants teen exercised and the Company’s share capitabo@sdingly

increased by 27,803,472 series J shares. As a eddiarch 1, 2005 the Company’s share capital istets of 372,781,783
ordinary shares and of 1,000 of series Al shares.

36



